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AGENDA
FOR THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
OF THE TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
June 22, 2021
Work Session at 6:00 PM – Short Term Rentals (STR) Review and Policy Discussion
(The Board will not make decisions during the Work Session)
Regular Meeting at 7:00 PM
Members of the Board of Trustees will be meeting at the Community Center
715 E. Main Street, Buena Vista, Colorado
Staff and the Public will attend the meeting virtually.
To participate in Public Comment and/or Public Hearings, you must connect to the video conference.
Password: 971317
Conferencing Access Information: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88075048459
Listen via phone at 1-301-715-8592
Meeting ID: 880 7504 8459 Password: 971317
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MAY TAKE ACTION ON ANY OF THE FOLLOWING AGENDA
ITEMS AS PRESENTED OR MODIFIED PRIOR TO OR DURING THE MEETING, AND
ITEMS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE AGENDA ITEMS
I.

CALL TO ORDER

II.

ROLL CALL

III.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

IV. AGENDA ADOPTION
The Board approves the agenda at the start of the meeting including modifications.
V.

CONSENT AGENDA
Approval of matters that are routine in nature that require review and/or approval, i.e. minutes and reports.
(Professional Service Agreements (PSA) that exceed $25,000.00 require the Consent Agenda to be
approved by a Roll Call vote)
A. Minutes
1. Board of Trustees – June 8, 2021
2. Trails Advisory Board – April 6, 2021
B. Town Clerk Report
C. Adoption of Resolution No. 28, Series 2021 entitled “A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF
TRUSTEES FOR THE TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO, APPOINTING WAYNE LEE AS A
REGULAR VOTING MEMBER AND MARK GODONIS AS AN ALTERNATE MEMBER OF THE
AIRPORT ADVISORY BOARD.”
D. Adoption of Resolution No. 29, Series 2021 entitled “A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF BUENA
VISTA, COLORADO, APPROVING A NOTICE OF AWARD TO A-1 CHIPSEAL COMPANY FOR THE
2021 STREET CHIPSEAL PROJECTS.”

VI.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Citizen participation where the public can sign up prior to the start of the meeting in order to speak during
public comment. Three minutes for matters not on the agenda or for agenda items not scheduled for Public
Hearing. Enter your name, address, and subject to be discussed in the Zoom Chat box, or when Mayor Lacy
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asks for Public Comment, click the raise hand button in the webinar control panel, or by phone press *9, and
the meeting host will prompt you to unmute when it is your turn to speak. Or you may email the information to
bvclerk@buenavistaco.gov. Neither Town Board nor Town staff should be expected to respond to matters
raised in the Public Comment segment of Board meetings. Nevertheless, Board members will always retain
the right to ask questions of the speaker and respond then or later to remarks made by any citizen.
VII.

VIII.

STAFF REPORTS
1. Town Administrator
2. Town Treasurer
3. Principal Planner
4. Public Works Director
5. Airport Manager
BUSINESS ITEMS
A. 2020 Audit Report
Treasurer Stoke will review with the Board a summary of the 2020 Audit Report.
(Estimated time – 10 minutes)
B. Local Emergency Declaration
Adoption of Resolution No. 30, Series 2021 entitled “A RESOLUTION EXTENDING THE
DECLARATION OF A LOCAL DISASTER EMERGENCY IN AND FOR THE TOWN OF
BUENA VISTA, COLORADO THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021.”
The Board will discuss whether to extend the local emergency declaration and review the Remote
Participation Policy. (Estimated time – 10 minutes)
C. IGA ith CDOT for Intersection at US 24/Baylor and DePaul
Adoption of Resolution No. 31, Series 2021 entitled “A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF
TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO, APPROVING AN
AGREEMENT WITH THE COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE
DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF A TRAFFIC SIGNAL ON US HIGHWAY 24 AT THE
INTERSECTION OF DE PAUL AVENUE AND BAYLOR DRIVE.”
The Board will consider apporing a contract with CDOT to proceed with design and engineering work
for the intersection. (Estimated time – 10 minutes)

IX. TRUSTEE/STAFF INTERACTION
The Board discusses items with staff, and staff can bring up matters not on the agenda.
X. ADJOURNMENT
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MINUTES OF THE BUENA VISTA BOARD OF TRUSTEES
REGULAR MEETING
MONDAY, June 7, 2021
MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES ARE A TRANSCRIPT OF THE
GOVERNING BODY'S ACTIONS RATHER THAN A VERBATIM RECORD OF DELIBERATIONS.
Work Session – Short Term Rentals – (STR) Review and Policy Discussion
In attendance for the Work Session were Mayor Duff Lacy, Trustees Amy Eckstein, Libby Fay,
Norm Nyberg, Devin Rowe, Cindie Swisher, and David Volpe. Also present were Town
Administrator Phillip Puckett, Town Attorney Kathryn Sellars, Special Projects Manager Joel
Benson, Principal Planner Mark Doering, Code Enforcement Officer Grant Bryans, Planning Tech
Doug Tart, Deputy Town Clerk Lillian Simpson, and Town Clerk Paula Barnett.
Mayor Lacy commented that he appreciates the amount of time and effort staff members
have contributed to creating the document for the Work Session. Town Administrator Phillip
Puckett also thanked the staff for putting in extra time the past eight weeks to contribute to
this project while performing their other duties.
Puckett stated that this work session is aimed to share current STR license numbers, trends,
and why a change is needed. To purpose a policy change for 2022 and seek direction from the
Board on how to proceed forward.
Puckett reviewed as of June 4, 2021, within the Town limits, there are 1,824 housing units and
133 STR licenses which is 7.3% of the housing available. Chaffee County residents hold 53
(40%) licenses, and 80 (60%) are owned by out-of-county residents.
Puckett shared that a policy change should be considered because the demand for short-term
lodging in town and surrounding areas continues to increase. With a limited number of
hotel/motel/bed and breakfast units, STRs play an essential role in our local economy. Local
owners also utilize STRs to afford to live in the area, especially with new construction costs.
Puckett stated while Staff has not seen the total STR license count drastically increase from
year to year, attainable workforce housing, especially rental units, has continued to become
harder or impossible to find. Concerns from citizens about the impact of STRs in our residential
areas and the fear of losing the community feel.
Puckett reviewed the proposed policy change would set a reasonable upper limit to prevent a
drastic increase in STR licenses and/or a decrease in housing units available for primary
ownership and long-term rentals. Split the limit between local and non-local owners to
promote more local owners and exempt certain zone districts/areas where STRs are desired
and present minimal impacts.
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Puckett reviewed details of the proposed policy, which include the following.
• Allow licensing of STRs up to a fixed rate of 7% of current housing units with a blend
of ownership at a 50/50 split for out-of-town and local residents
• Grandfather current licenses including any that are over the 7% limit until attrition
lowers the total STR number and/or the total number of housing units increases
• Properties in the MU-MS zone district (East Main Street) and along South Main Street
would be excepted from this restriction. MU-MS would still require a Special Use
Permit according to the existing code. Additionally, the parking requirement is
proposed to change to require 1 space per STR in this zone district. Some additional
code adjustments (definitions) would also be pursued.
• Likely, the licensing fee for an application (both new and renewal) will increase to
match the added burden on staff and be more in line with Chaffee County. The fine for
non-compliance with the code is also likely to increase.
• This policy is necessary now, and can be modified by the Board of Trustees at any
time after assessing in progress, need economic and demographic shifts in the
community, or other discernible evolution of the housing market
Puckett reviewed if the Board determines they want to move forward with a policy, the next
steps would include the following.
• Staff will craft a framework for the new policy and process
• Engage Chaffee Housing Authority Director for input
• Notify the public and current lodging contacts (STR owners, Hotels/Motels/B&B)
about the pending changes and encourage the public to participate during the
Planning & Zoning meetings and/or engaging with staff
• Staff will bring the proposal to the Planning and Zoning Commission meetings during
June/July to discuss, adjust and then draft an Ordinance
• Ordinance comes back to the Board in August for adoption
• Create PR and FAQ material to educate the public about the policy and procedure
The Board and Staff discussed the proposed policy with Trustee Eckstein commenting that the
public engagement process will be a strategic factor in the process, and suggested hiring a
third party to oversee Public Comment. Special Projects Manager Joel Benson shared that
engaging a third party requires posting a Request For Proposal (RFP) for the job, a learning
curve since the third party would not know the needs and desire of Town and would lengthen
the process.
Trustee Volpe stated that before a policy is adopted, he would like a statement of the specific
short-term rental issue(s), what the Board is attempting to accomplish, and if the adopted
policy would resolve those issues. Trustee Volpe would also like data on if a cap is in place,
would it increase the number of long-term rentals, and the impact it would have on the local
economy.
Trustee Nyberg and Trustee Rowe agreed with Trustee Volpe's comments and request.
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Trustee Swisher stated she feels there should be a limit on STRs, and county residents should
receive a higher portion of the split than non-county residents (60/40 or 70/30).
Trustee Fay stated she would like to move forward with the policy, increase the cap to 9%, and
agrees with Trustee Swisher on a higher split for county residents.
Mayor Lacy thanked the Trustees and Staff for their comments, and the topic would be
discussed during Trustee-Staff Interaction.
A virtual/public regular meeting of the Board of Trustees was called to order by Mayor Duff
Lacy at 7:00 PM, Monday, June 7, 2021, at the Buena Vista Community Center, Pinon Room,
715 E. Main Street, Buena Vista, Colorado, having been previously noticed in accordance with
the Colorado Open Meetings Law.
ROLL CALL

Attendee Name
Duff Lacy
Amy Eckstein
Libby Fay
Norm Nyberg
Devin Rowe
Cindie Swisher
David Volpe

Town Staff Present:
Town Administrator Phillip Puckett
Special Projects Manager Joel Benson
Principal Planner Mark Doering
Police Chief Dean Morgan
Chaffee County Fire Chief Robert Bertram

Title
Mayor
Trustee
Trustee
Trustee
Trustee
Trustee
Trustee

Status
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Town Attorney Kathryn Sellars
Town Treasurer Michelle Stoke
Town Clerk Paula Barnett
Recreation Director Earl Richmond

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mayor Lacy led the pledge of allegiance.
Mayor Lacy requested two changes be made to the agenda. Removal of Business Item C: Code
Enforcement on Flags and Elections Signs requires the Planning & Zoning Commission to review
and recommend the Trustees adopt the proposed ordinance changes to the Unified Building
Code. Also, move Recreation Director Earl Richmond’s Staff Report to Trustee Staff Interaction.
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AGENDA ADOPTION
MOTION NO. 1:
MOVE TO APPROVE THE AGENDA S AMENDED.
RESULTS
ROLL CALL
CARRIED
MOVER:
Trustee Fay
SECONDER:
Trustee Nyberg
AYES:
Eckstein, Fay, Nyberg, Rowe, Swisher, Volpe
CONSENT AGENDA
Approval of matters that are routine in nature that require review and/or approval, i.e. minutes
and reports. (Professional Service Agreements (PSA) that exceed $25,000.00 require the Consent
Agenda to be approved by a Roll Call vote.)
A. Minutes
1. Board of Trustees Regular Meeting – May 25, 2021
2. Airport Advisory Board – April 20, 2021
3. Beautification Advisory Board – May 13, 2021
Trustee Fay commented that she appreciates the information Police Chief Dean Morgan and
Fire Chief Bertram include in their reports.
MOTION NO. 2:
MOVE TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA.
RESULTS
ROLL CALL
CARRIED
MOVER:
Trustee Volpe
SECONDER:
Trustee Swisher
AYES:
Eckstein, Fay, Nyberg, Rowe, Swisher, Volpe
PUBLIC COMMENT
Jeff Edson, 117 Riverrun Court, thanked the Town Staff for their thoughtful and thorough
analysis of Short Term Rentals in Buena Vista and how the proposed policy change supports
several facets of the Community Vision Statement. Edson stated that setting a limit on STR
licenses relates to the preservation of the community, and recognizing the need for a balance
between local and non-local ownership satisfies the requirement that “Land use decisions be
made with thoughtfulness and an eye towards sustainability”. Edson stated the exemption of
certain zone districts where STRs are desired and presents minimal impacts supports the
statement “Land uses can coexist in a well-planned pattern.” Edson stated he expects the
Board to receive objections to the policy changes by special interest groups and asked them to
have the courage to uphold the preservation of our community as outlined in the Community
Vision Statement. Edson stated although he has exceeded his time allotment, he has additional
details to discuss and the Board to consider based upon what other communities before
approving a policy change.
Trustee Eckstein requested Mr. Edson email the comments to Town Administrator Puckett
for distribution to the Board.
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STAFF REPORTS
1. Town Treasurer – Highlights of the report in the packet were reviewed, and Stoke
responded to the Trustee's comments and questions.
2. Police Chief – Highlights of the report in the packet were reviewed, and Morgan
responded to the Trustee's comments and questions.
3. Fire Chief – Highlights of the report in the packet were reviewed, and Chaffee County
Fire Chief Bertram responded to the Trustee’s comments and questions.
BUSINESS ITEMS
Community Engagement & Master Planning Proposal for Town-Owned Property Near
Collegiate Commons
Administrator Phillip Puckett reviewed with the Board that the Town owns two parcels of land
near Collegiate Commons, and in 2020 they worked with Chaffee County Housing Director Becky
Gray to determine the land values on all lots owned by Town. Puckett stated that the staff has
identified the need for housing and reached out to Gray and Joseph Teipel from Chaffee County
Community Foundation(CCCF) to proceed with a Master Planning Proposal.
Teipel stated CCCF proposes to lead a community engagement and planning process that will
culminate in a final report, site plan, funding scan, and necessary information and
recommendations to guide Town toward action and the next steps in developing the two
parcels. The primary focus will be creating attainable and flexible workforce housing, childcare,
and entrepreneurial and small business development.
Teipel reviewed the scope of work and timeline, concluding with a final report that includes the
conceptual site plans, market study, stakeholder and community feedback, and
recommendations for development in September or October.
Teipel stated the Master Planning proposal is developing rapidly. After meeting earlier today
with Puckett, Special Projects Manager Joel Benson, and private sector developers/investors,
exploring options for the Town-owned property, he would like to decrease the funding request
from $40,000.00 to $15,000.00, requiring the developer to cover the cost of the market study.
Trustee Volpe asked if other businesses (School District, Department of Corrections, Sangre de
Cristo Electric Association, hospital) would be invited to discuss the conception and explore
assets that could be contributed to the concept. Puckett stated yes, businesses/individuals
would be extended an invitation to participate in the community engagement and planning
processes
Trustee Swisher asked if the Town would oversee the renting and managing of the property.
Puckett stated the Town would not be involved in property management, could do a land lease,
and will explore all options available.
Trustee Fay asked who CCCF would be accountable to during this process. Teipel shared he
would be reporting to Town Administrator Puckett and will meet with the Board as directed.
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MOTION NO. 3:
MOVE TO APPROVE A $15,000.00 EXPENDITURE TO FUND THE MASTER PLANNING PROPOSAL
FOR THE TOWN-OWNED PROPERTY NEAR COLLEGIATE COMMONS.
RESULTS
ROLL CALL
CARRIED
MOVER:
Trustee Volpe
SECONDER:
Trustee Fay
AYES:
Eckstein, Fay, Nyberg, Rowe, Swisher, Volpe
Street Improvement Projects
Adoption of Resolution No. 27, Series 2021 entitled, “A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF
TRUSTEES FOR THE TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO, APPROVING A NOTICE OF AWARD
TO S & S UNLIMITED FOR THE 2021 STREET PAVING PROJECTS.
Puckett reviewed that Staff is requesting a Notice of Award to S & S Unlimited for the asphalt
repair and installation portions of the Street Improvement Projects. The streets included in the
Street Improvement Project are North Pleasant Avenue, East Arkansas Street, and North Court
Street.
MOTION NO. 4:
MOVE TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 27 APPROVING THE NOTICE OF AWARD TO S & S
UNLIMITED FOR THE 2021 STREET PAVING PROJECTS.
RESULTS
ROLL CALL
CARRIED
MOVER:
Trustee Eckstein
SECONDER:
Trustee Nyberg
AYES:
Eckstein, Fay, Nyberg, Rowe, Swisher, Volpe
Recreation Director Earl Richmond reviewed highlights of the report in the packet and
responded to the Trustee’s comments and questions.
TRUSTEE/STAFF INTERACTION
Trustees and Staff reported on or commented about recent and upcoming events, activities,
and topics.
Trustee Volpe stated he is unsure if this is the appropriate table to discuss the email the
Trustees received from Marcus Trusty on June 6, 2021, regarding the Chaffee County Rec Plan.
Volpe stated he, too, has the same concerns expressed by Trusty.
Mayor Lacy shared he and Administrator Puckett had the opportunity to discuss the email and
Trusty’s concerns. The Board will have the chance to address their concerns regarding the
Chaffee County Rec Plan with Cindy Williams, Co-Chair Envision Chaffee County, at the June
22nd Trustee meeting.
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Trustee Eckstein stated she received comments from several stakeholders that have concerns
related to the plan. She questions if there may be groups and individuals who did not have an
opportunity to submit commits by the June 4th cutoff date. Therefore, she would like to
request Envision Chaffee County to re-open the comment period for 30 days.
Trustee Eckstein made the motion to submit a letter to Envision Chaffee County requesting
they re-open the Chaffee County Rec Plan comment period for an additional 30 days.
Trustee Swisher stated she did not receive the email from Trusty.
Recreation Director Richmond (Town’s representative on the Chaffee County Rec Council)
stated Trusty submitted his letter before the cutoff. In addition, Richmond has spoken with
Cindy Williams, and she shared 200 independent comments were received by the June 4th
deadline, 80% were positive comments, and 20% provided constructive input.
Volpe seconded the motion and stated he is unsure if it is the Board of Trustees' role to
request an extension.
The Board had a lengthy discussion related to public engagement and their role in a countywide program that will be requesting funding from the Town in the future.
Fay asked if a revised draft of the County Rec Plan will be provided that reflects the comments
and changes made. Richmond stated that if the Chaffee County Rec Board agrees revisions are
needed, an updated document will be distributed.
MOTION NO. 5:
MOVE TO SUBMIT A LETTER TO ENVISION CHAFFEE COUNTY REQUESTING THEY RE-OPEN THE
CHAFFEE COUNTY REC PLAN COMMENT PERIOD FOR AN ADDITIONAL 30 DAYS.
RESULTS
ROLL CALL
CARRIED
MOVER:
Trustee Eckstein
SECONDER:
Trustee Volpe
AYES:
Eckstein, Fay, Nyberg, Swisher
NYES:
Rowe, Volpe
Treasurer Stoke requested the Board approve a $37,670.00 budget amendment for the
Worker’s Comp Audit Adjustment.
MOTION NO. 6:
MOVE TO APPROVE THE WORKER’S COMP AUDIT ADJUSTMENT FOR $37,670.00.
RESULTS
ROLL CALL
CARRIED
MOVER:
Trustee Eckstein
SECONDER:
Trustee Swisher
AYES:
Eckstein, Fay, Nyberg, Rowe, Swisher, Volpe
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Puckett asked the Board how they would like to proceed with the Short-Term Rental topic and
if they would like to discuss this further at the June 22nd meeting.
Mayor Lacy asked the Trustees if they would like to move the topic to the Planning & Zoning
Commission now, discuss it at the June 22nd meeting, or set a cap on the number of short-term
rentals.
Trustee Nyberg said he would like to set a cap on the number of STR’s then give the topic to
the Planning & Zoning Commission for review and input.
Trustee Volpe stated he would like to receive input from the Planning & Zoning Commission
before setting a cap.
Trustee Nyberg made a motion to move the Short-Term Rental Policy to the Planning & Zoning
Commission for review as presented. Trustee Fay seconded the motion.
Trustee Eckstein stated that the Trustees need to look at more specifics to a policy, and
additional discussions are needed before sending it to the Planning and Zoning Commission.
Trustee Swisher said she is open to a cap but does not want the Planning & Zoning Commission
members to spend time reviewing a policy that Trustees have not agreed on.
Puckett stated if more time is needed to adopt a policy, the timeline would be modified,
condensing the timeframe to informed applicants and implement the new policy. Puckett said
the Board could place a moratorium on STR’s, which is a big step that may have fallout.
Trustee Nyberg asked if he could revise his motion. Mayor Lacy said yes, and Nyberg made the
motion to place a cap of 7% on short-term rentals.
Trustee Fay stated she prefers to set the cap at 9%, and Trustee Eckstein said she thinks more
discussion is needed. Trustee Nyberg said, what about 8%. Trustee Fee commented that Board
could amend the cap at a later date. Mayor Lacy asked for a second to the motion, and Trustee
Fay seconded the motion.
Trustee Eckstein said she thinks it's premature to discuss setting a cap and would like the topic
to be an agenda item for further discussion. Trustee Fay agreed with having the topic as an
agenda item which would allow the Board to identify the problem(s) they are trying to resolve.
Trustee Rowe stated he does not support setting a cap on STR’s based on the information
provided. He sees it as a cap on tourism, which is also the income for businesses, employees,
and Town.
Mayor Lacy asked for a Roll Call vote. Town Clerk Barnett asked for clarification on the motion
before the Board. Mayor Lacy confirmed the motion is to set a cap of 7% on STR’s.
BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF BUENA VISTA
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Trustee Nyberg amended the motion to set an 8% cap on short-term rentals. Trustee Fay
seconded.
MOTION NO. 7:
MOVE TO SET A 8% CAP ON SHORT-TERM RENTALS.
RESULTS
ROLL CALL
MOVER:
SECONDER:
AYES:
NYES:
TIE VOTE:

CARRIED
Trustee Nyberg
Trustee Fay
Fay, Nyberg, Swisher
Eckstein, Rowe, Volpe
Mayor Lacy - Yes

Puckett proposed that Staff post the required Public Notice for the Planning & Zoning
Commission to hold a Public Hearing related to Short Term Rentals at their July 7th meeting and
have short-term rentals as an agenda item at the June 22nd Trustee meeting. The Board agreed
with Puckett’s proposal.
EXECUTIVE SESSION
An executive session to consider the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of a real,
personal, or other property interest, pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(a), specifically concerning
the potential sale of the Town’s fire station.
MOTION NO. 8:
MOVE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION.
RESULTS
CARRIED
MOVER:
Trustee Nyberg
SECONDER:
Trustee Volpe
AYES:
Eckstein, Fay, Nyberg, Rowe, Swisher, Volpe
The Board went into Executive Session at 8:50 pm. Present for the Executive Session were
Mayor Duff Lacy, Trustees Amy Eckstein, Libby Fay, Norm Nyberg, Devin Rowe, Cindie Swisher,
Dave Volpe, Town Administrator Phillip Puckett, Town Attorney Kathryn Sellars, Principal
Planner Mark Doering, First Colorado Land Office Owner/Broker Jeff Post, and Town Clerk
Paula Barnett.
MOTION NO. 9:
MOVE TO ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 9:23 PM.
RESULTS
CARRIED
MOVER:
Trustee Nyberg
SECONDER:
Trustee Volpe
AYES:
Eckstein, Fay, Nyberg, Rowe, Swisher, Volpe
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Mayor Lacy announced that he and Trustees Eckstein, Fay, Nyberg, Rowe, Swisher, and Volpe,
the Town Administrator, Town Attorney, Principal Planner, Town Clerk, and Jeff Post were
present for the Executive Session.
MOTION NO. 10:
THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO COME BEFORE THE BOARD, THAT THE MEETING BE
ADJOURNED AT 9:24 PM.
RESULTS
CARRIED
MOVER:
Trustee Nyberg
SECONDER:
Trustee Volpe
AYES:
Eckstein, Fay, Nyberg, Rowe, Swisher, Volpe
Respectfully submitted:

____________________________________
Duff Lacy, Mayor
___________________________________
Paula Barnett, Town Clerk
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DATE:

June 22, 2021

TO:

Mayor and Board of Trustees

FROM:

Paula Barnett, Town Clerk
Lillian Simpson, Deputy Town

RE:

May Town Clerk Report

LIQUOR LICENSES

SPECIAL EVENT PERMITS
• Buena Vista Chamber of Commerce – Business After Hours
Full Circle Real Estate 316 W. Main Street – May 20, 2021 from 5:00 pm to 7:00 pm
LICENSES RENEWED - None
NEW LICENSES – None
BUSINESS LICENSES
NEW LICENSES ISSUED
● Good Behavior, LLC dba The Slammer – 412 E. Main St. / William Lucas Ross (Bar)
● Reach and Run Enterprises, LLC – 584 Pinon Street / Michael Hammond (STR)
● Ark Valley Athletics, LLC – 105 Isabel Court / Christy Frank (Gymnastics classes)
● Dartmouth Drive – 116 Dartmouth Drive / Eric Smith, Erie CO (STR)
● The Greenhouse Corporation dba The Lettucehead Food Co. – 545 US Hwy 24 N / Adam and
Anna Heinauer (Groceries, new ownership)
● Ark Valley Espresso – 115 S. Gunnison Ave. / Jackson and Mary Lou Sentz (Coffee catering)
● Masons Bookkeeping – 111 Tabor Street / Patrick Czerwinski (Bookkeeping)
● Gracie’s Farmstead – Special Events / Desiree Marceau (Farmer’s market)
● Proper Work, LLC – 505 Alder St., Leadville / Josef Edwards (Property management)
● Valley View Cabin – 302 Essex Street / Austin Miller (STR)
● 727 Marquette Unit A – 727 Marquette Unit A / Stacie Jordan, Oro Valley AZ (STR)
● Little Engine Eatery – Food Truck / Achieve Inc., Jennifer Davis (Food truck)
● Hartsel Electric Company – 671 Badger Rd, Hartsel / Zachary Weaver (Electrician)
● Rocky Mountain Backroad Adventures, LLC – Special Event / Bruce Weiner, Florida (Travel)
● Weaver Woman USA – 525 W. 16th St., Salida / Bette Busch (Handmade Wool Rugs)
● Stoumbaugh/120 Stoney Run – 120 Stoney Run / Charlie Stoumbaugh (STR)
● 115 N San Juan Ave – 115 N San Juan Ave / Justin Kushik, Arvada (STR)
● The Hopp – 28395 CR 317 / Charles Buehler (Food truck)
● Boxcar Leather – 24899 US Hwy 285 / Ashleigh Cogan (Handmade leather goods)

16
● Easkey Properties, LLC – 230 James Street / Trey & Danielle Shelton (Property management)
● Lotus EMDR, PLLC – 230 James Street / Danielle Shelton (Telehealth therapy)
● Park Lane Rental – 542 Park Lane / MAK Properties, Kim Zipper, Florida (STR)
LICENSES RENEWED – 3
CEMETERY
•

2 Site Sales

• 6 Interments
NOTARY SERVICES

•

22 Notarizations
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
RESOLUTION NO. 28
(Series of 2021)
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR THE TOWN OF BUENA VISTA,
COLORADO, APPOINTING WAYNE LEE AS A REGULAR VOTING MEMBER AND
MARK GODONIS AS AN ALTERNATE MEMBER OF THE AIRPORT ADVISORY
BOARD.
WHEREAS, Article VIII, Chapter 2, Sec. 162 of the Buena Vista Municipal Code
authorizes the Board of Trustees to appoint individuals to serve as members of the Town of Buena
Vista Airport Advisory Board by a majority vote of all members of the Board; and
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to make the appointments set forth herein,
which is as recommended by the respective advisory board.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR
THE TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO as follows:
Section 1. The following appointment is made to the Airport Advisory Board:
Wayne Lee, regular member, with a term ending December 2022
Mark Godonis, alternate member, with a term ending December 2021
Section 2. Each advisory board member so appointed shall hold his or her appointment until his
or her term expires, or he or she is removed or resigns, or as otherwise provided for in accordance
with the ordinances of the Town of Buena Vista.
RESOLVED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of June, 2021.
TOWN OF BUENA VISTA

ATTEST:
__________________________________
Paula Barnett, Town Clerk

BY: ________________________________
Duff Lacy, Mayor
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DATE:

June 18, 2021

TO:

Mayor and Board of Trustees

FROM:

Shawn Williams, Public Works Director

RE:

Resolution #29, Chipseal Projects Award Recommendation

Request:
Staff is requesting a Notice of Award to A-1 Chipseal Company for the chipseal installation portions of the Town
of Buena Vista Street Improvements Projects.
Overview:
As directed by the Town of Buena Vista Board of Trustees and funded in the 2021 Town of Buena Vista Adopted
Budget, Staff developed, advertised and produced a Request for Proposal, a street improvements project to
install chipseal applications to existing Town of Buena Vista streets. A bid opening was held on May 21, 2021 and
3 bid proposals were submitted to the town by A-1 Chipseal Company, Rocky Mountain Chipseal and GMCO LLC
of Colorado.
Project Selection:
Many streets within the town are in need of repair and rehabilitation. The streets that were selected for this
years chipseal projects were selected by evaluating the condition of the existing paving and existing chipseal.
Susan Dr., Robert Dr. and Raymond Lee are chipseal roads that are overdue for resurfacing. These streets will
need patching and some subgrade preparation prior to the chipseal installations. By doing these streets in 2021
will prevent the need for a much more extensive and expensive street rehabilitation project. Crossman Avenue
also meets this criteria. Several locations in this project will need subgrade preparation and patching. This will
need to be performed prior to the chipseal installations. Investing a chipseal application now will allow staff to
have time to design and engineer future infrastructure projects on Crossman Avenue. South Railroad Street had
a section of chipseal installed last year and this year’s project will be a continuation extending from Marquette
Ave. To the Baylor Drive intersection. Also, with the sidewalk project completed late in 2020, with grade
preparation prior to chipseal installation will complete this project as well.
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1. Crossman Avenue
1,736’ x32’
Subgrade preparation and pothole/ patching provided by public works prior to chipseal installation

2. South Railroad Street
1,153’ x 34’
Milling and asphalt repair provided by public works prior to chipseal installation

3. Susan Drive
829’ x 24’
Pothole/patching and subgrade prep. provided by public works prior to chipseal installation

20
4. Robert Drive
955’ x 24’
Pothole/patching provided by public works prior to chipseal installation

5. Raymond Lee Drive
1081’ x 24’
Pothole/patching provided by public works prior to chipseal installation

Submitted Bids:
GMCO LLC of Colorado

$ 82,308.00

A-1 Chipseal Company

$ 80,852.05

Rocky Mountain Chipseal

$ 74,187.00

Bid Evaluation:
Staff has reviewed and considered the bid submitted for the described work. All of the proposals appear
qualified to perform the project. GMCO and A-1 present very similar installation costs and Rocky Mountain is
considerably lower. Aside from cost, the main difference between the proposals is that A-1 proposes to import
the chip, a hard granite rock, black in color from Golden Co. This is the rock that has been installed for the last
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several years. A-1 also offers a complementary touchup sweeping and recommends a double chip on Susan
Drive.
A-1 was the only bid to schedule and make a site visit to evaluate the projects.
Recommendation:
Although Rocky Mountain Chipseal provided the lowest bid, the Town of Buena Vista Public Works Department
recommends a Notice of Award and contract execution for the described work and bid proposal to A-1 Chipseal
Company.
BOT Action:
Staff request that the board make a motion to approve, approve with amendments or deny.
Bid Submittal Cost:
$ $80,852.05
Funding Source:
2021 Town of Buena Vista Adopted Budget, Street Improvements Capitol Fund.

Respectfully Submitted,
Shawn Williams
Shawn Williams, Town of Buena Vista Public Works Director
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA
RESOLUTION NO. 29
(Series 2021)
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO,
APPROVING A NOTICE OF AWARD TO A-1 CHIPSEAL COMPANY
FOR THE 2021 STREET CHIPSEAL PROJECTS
WHEREAS, The Town of Buena Vista advertised by means of public bid process for the 2021
Street Improvements Project, followed by a bid opening on May 21, 2021;
WHEREAS, three (3) bids for the street chipseal projects were received and reviewed by
the Public Works Department;
WHEREAS, the Public Works Department recommends accepting the bid and contracting
with A-1 Chipseal Company for a not to exceed amount of $80,852.05 for the chipseal installation
portions of the bid schedule items and;
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Town of Buena Vista has reviewed the
recommendation of the Public Works Department and finds and determines that it would be in the best
interests of the Town and its residents to enter into a contract.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR THE
TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO, approves the Notice of Award and approves that the
Mayor and/or the Town Administrator are authorized and directed to execute a Construction
Contract for the 2021 Town of Buena Vista, Street Paving Projects with A-1 Chipseal Company
on behalf of the Town.
RESOLVED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 22nd day of June 2021.
TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO

ATTEST:
__________________________
Paula Barnett, Town Clerk

BY: ___________________________
Duff Lacy, Mayor
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DATE:

June 18, 2021

TO:

Mayor and Board of Trustees

FROM:

Phillip Puckett, Town Administrator

RE:

Town Administrator Report

I want to recognize our amazing staff for all the great work and accomplishments so far in
2021. A new edginess (COVID, growth, political, etc.) seems to be more prevalent, and our
staff often absorbs that negativity. This group shows a lot of grit and perseverance, so the
burden may not be visible, but I do see it up close, and I feel the responsibility to call this out
to our Board and the public. Also, a huge thank you to the volunteers that continue to step
onto the playing field (or pitch for football soccer fans) with us to make a difference for the
community. Finally, to those that still believe in humility and kindness, thank you for sharing
the words of encouragement, the tasty food, the positive outlook, and the helping hand.
Chaffee Rec Plan
At the direction of the Board, a letter was sent to the Chaffee Rec Council respectfully requesting an extension
to the public comment period. Cindy Williams immediately re-opened the input platform and agreed to extend
the comment period to June 20th. The Chaffee Recreation Council will review the feedback and then return to
the Town Board on July 13th with a revised version of the plan and request an endorsement.
Police Station Facility project
Staff are working on the funding proposal for constructing the new Police Station, including Certificates of
Participation (COPs). We will hold a work session on July 27th to cover this proposal and have invited
representatives from Stifel Financial (who are helping the County and Salida Schools with COPs) and Christy
Doon from DOLA.
American Rescue Plan Act (ARP)
Staff has requested our first distribution of ARP funds from DOLA and expect to receive a payment within a
week. We anticipate participating in some county-wide discussions about A reminder that we have until the
end of 2024 to spend these funds.
Local Disaster Emergency regarding workforce housing
Some other Colorado municipalities have moved forward with declaring a local emergency regarding workforce
housing. The Administrators have discussed this concept and it seems there could be some benefits for our local
governments as we navigate this time. A local disaster could provide the Town Administrator emergency
powers to address specific situations that impact or help the creation of affordable workforce housing and/or
temporary housing. It could also allow the Town to suspend parts of the Municipal Code that impede our ability
to cope with the emergency. This could also pertain to the Building Code. I plan to investigate this in more
detail for future discussion with the Board and welcome your input on the concept. While it could allow us to
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make some short-term actions to help ease the strain, I don’t want to overstep or cause unintended
consequences.
Board Meeting Setup
Staff is planning to have the Board meetings fully open to the public in person starting July 13th. We will still
utilize the Zoom set up for the public and guests to participate remotely.
Thank you for your attention to my report. Please let me know if you have questions.

Phillip Puckett, Town Administrator

25

DATE:

June 22, 2021

TO:

Mayor and Board of Trustees

FROM:

Michelle Stoke, Town Treasurer

RE:

Treasurer Report

Transparency Website:
https://www.cleargov.com/colorado/chaffee/town/buena-vista
2021 Budget Book:
The 2021 Budget Book can be found at the following link:
https://town-buena-vista-co-budget-book.cleargov.com/town-of-buena-vista/2021/introduction/transmittal-letter
Total Sales Tax for April:
Sales tax for the month of April came in at $335,314.93:
Apr 2020 Actual

Apr 2021 Budget

Apr 2021 Actual

YTD Percent
growth over 2020

YTD Percent
excess over 2021
Budget

Year to Date
Budget surplus

$228,453.44

$235,407.04

$335,314.93

37.11%

33.03%

$323,140.45

I have attached the bar graph showing this information.
Town Sales Tax Remote v Local Data:
The following chart shows a comparison of town local sales taxes for 2020 and 2021 and lists the percent change between them for each
month so far this year.

2020

Jan
115,335

Feb
179,728

Mar
160,159

Apr
129,854

2021

171,296

165,689

210,131

166,359

Change
%

45.52%

-7.81%

31.20%

28.11%

May
179,464

Jun
273,891

Jul
310,777

Aug
302,422

Sep
277,047

Oct
222,980

Nov
168,838

Dec
228,235

YTD
2,548,730

Likewise, this chart shows the comparison and growth of remote town sales taxes for 2020 and 2021 with the percent change for each.
2020

Jan
44,939

Feb
31,355

Mar
33,516

Apr
34,144

2021

65,306

66,110

62,142

55,437

Change
%

45.32%

110.81%

85.41%

62.42%

May
40,873

Jun
49,526

Jul
46,633

Aug
43,759

Sep
43,824

Oct
41,286

Nov
47,293

Dec
51,773

YTD
508,921
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Mid-Year Budget Adjustment:
July 13th, I will bring the mid-year budget adjustment for all the adjustments that impact the 2021 Budget so far this year.
Second Quarter Financial Status:
July 27th, I will present the Second Quarter Financial Status Report.
Town Expenditures:
Since the June 8, 2021, report the Town has issued:
•
73 accounts payable checks for a total of $122,018.04
•
ACH withdrawals to the IRS, FPPA, CCOERA and Colorado Department of Revenue for pay period ending 5/29/2021 were
$32,613.40.
•
Net regular payroll was $67,277.25 for the same period.
•
The breakdown by Fund for AP and payroll-related check disbursements plus the ACH payments is as follows: (Note that not all
expenditures are expenses since some are reimbursements or withholding from employees’ gross payroll)
o General Fund $ 113,508.35
o All Hazard Response Fund $
6,914.66
o Water Enterprise Fund $
25,707.81
o Capital Improvement Fund $
0.00
o Stormwater Enterprise Fund$
0.00
o Airport Enterprise Fund $
3,777.12
o Street Fund $
4,723.50
o TOTAL
$ 154,631.44
Expenditures Over $2,000.00
-Delta Dental of Colorado for $3,372.42 for June employee dental insurance premiums
-Front Range Research Associates, Inc. for $12,574.00 for intensive survey draft report
-Kevin Ratzmann for $4,773.52 for Incident response fund deployment reimbursement
-Pinnacol Assurance for $4,591.00 for Worker’s Comp premium-payment #6 out of 9
-Six Line Metalworks for $3,750.00 for BV Public Art Sculpture-Beautification project
-ACA Products In, for $3,177.54 for road base for street maintenance
-Allan Smith for $2,475.00 for April engineering consulting
-Core & Main LP for $5,729.30 for items for inventory
-DL Propernick Concrete for $4,003.50 for reimbursement for insurance coverage for Hwy 24 sidewalk project
-DPC Industries Inc for $2,465.53 for caustic soda and chlorine for water treatment
-Ideal Fencing LLC for $3,595.00 for guardrail & railing repair on James Street
-MTH Family LLC for $4,212.00 for 12 trees for Adopt-A-Tree Day
-Recreation Engineering and Planning for $2,537.50 for pocket wave renovation design
-RG and Associates, LLC for $13,250.98 April development reviews
-Southeastern Colorado Water Activity Enterprise for $3,056.83 for Safety of Dams/Water Activity/Environmental Steward Surcharges
-Tyler Technologies for $17,434.42 for System Management services and Incode Financial software for 7/1/21-6/30/22
This concludes my report.
I will entertain questions at this time.
Michelle Stoke, CPA
Treasurer/Finance Director

Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
-

-

-

370,893

265,877
309,255
339,596

214,725
236,306
280,346

338,657

189,059
200,024
242,730
286,518

208,036

269,950
306,698

600,000

500,000
500,000

442,984

395,503
426,488

2020

-

-

600,000

400,772
436,263

2019

321,013
313,475

315,692
345,640

2018

-

Correction, 63,846

287,377
332,312
362,375
393,253

221,149
245,168
264,671
295,075

335,315

349,447

Correction, 116,076

170,199
195,240
214,261
228,453

204,813
217,602
225,927
244,787

305,868

400,000

166,131
169,052
191,997
212,808

2017

-

-

200,000
263,149
310,783

300,000

169,333
189,782
202,768
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Town of Buena Vista Sales Tax Collected
2021

100,000

Dec

400,000

300,000

200,000

100,000

-
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Planning Department Monthly Report
May 2021
Building Permits:

9
1
1
0
0

New Residential Permits Issued
New Residential ADU Permit Issued
Residential Remodel/Addition Permits Issued
New Commercial Permits Issued
Commercial Remodel/Addition Permits Issued

CO’s Issued:

4
1

Residential
Commercial

Planning Permits:

3
4
0

Shed
Fence
Sign

Other Reviews:

5
0

Temporary Vendor Permits
Site Plan Reviews

2021 Year to Date (as of 1/31/21)
27 New Residential Dwelling Unit Building Permits Issued
3
New Accessory Dwelling Unit Building Permits Issued
0
Apartment Unit Permits Issued
1
Individual Duplex Dwelling Unit Building Permits Issued
Other Items:
1. Planning Commission: Heard Special Use Permit for 10 Short-term rental units at 417 E. Main St
2. Historic Preservation: Local Landmark Application – Chaffee County Courthouse/BV heritage Museum
Local Landmark Plaque Ceremony – 314 E. Cedar Street
3. Site Plans Submitted: The Farms Apartments – 77 units on 9 acres
4. Site Plans Pending:

None

5. Subdivisions Submitted: None
6. Subdivisions Pending: The Farm, Phase 2 Final Plat (Recorded)
South Main 6th Amendment to Phase 1 (In review)
River Run at BV (Recorded)
Block 30 (Recorded)
Sunset Vista #4, Phase 8 Public Improvements (Completed)
7. Special Use Permits:

417 E. Main Street (Approved by P&Z May 19)

8. Technical Manual:

Continuing

9. Chaffee County IGA:

Waiting on County

10. Other items:

Revitalizing Main Street Grants
Alley improvements in Block 21
Amendment to Water Dedication Ordinance

Chaffee Housing and Health Series
Floodplain Mapping
GIS field data collection
11. Preapplications:

The Homestead
Town-owned properties discussion
Mill/Alsina
305 E. Chestnut Street
East Main Street (2 separate projects)
CU Denver Capstone Project
Administrative Adjustments (4 along Arkansas Avenue)

Submitted by: Mark N. Doering, Principal Planner
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DATE:

June 22nd, 2021

TO:

Mayor and Board of Trustees

FROM:

Shawn Williams, Public Works Director

RE:

Public Works Staff Report

Water

May Water Production
22.8

13.221

25

16.221

20.99

20
11.077

8.817

15
10
5
0

2019

2020

Billed

2021

Master Meter

Monthly Production for March
Master Meter Billed/Consumption Fill Station
16.221 MG
11.077 MG
73,382 gallons

Unaccounted
32%

•
•
•

Water service line installations and inspections for 2021 = 19
Monthly Sampling, no Issues
Well #3 GWUDI compliance sampling on-going

•

June water daily usage has been extremely high. With the high heat and dry weather water demand
has increased to near maximum gallery production capabilities. Staff is performing leak detection to
identify the unusually high unaccounted water for May. Staff is also providing information for outside
watering smart tips. At this time Voluntary Water Restrictions are in place and will be published in the
Chaffee County Times this week.
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•

Cottonwood Creek stream flows peaked early on June 5th at 161 (cfs) according to the Division of
Water Resources Cottonwood Creek graph. It appears to be very similar to 2020 runoff and flows (not
shown). Historic averages show that the early peak and current flows are below average. Staff will
continue to monitor these conditions through the summer months.

Engineering Projects
• Standards and Specifications Manual continues: Gary Whelp with RGA
• 2021 Water Resource Master Plan
• Well #4 new site kick off meeting being planned
• Future Street and stormwater designs for existing unpaved roads and platted lots
• EPA Risk and Resilience Assessment Application Submittal: Town growth
On October 23, 2018, America's Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) was signed into law. AWIA Section 2013
requires community (drinking) water systems serving more than 3,300 people to develop or update risk
assessments and emergency response plans (ERPs). The law specifies the components that the risk
assessments and ERPs must addressed and establishes deadlines by which water systems must certify to EPA
completion of the risk assessment and ERP.
Water Plant Expansion Project Update
• Pilot Study Updates: Both surface and groundwater pilots have provided useful information. Water
quality and lab analysis are underway. Currently the surface water pilot will be using filter media as a
pre-filter and evaluating the compliance filter run times for the Harmsco units.
• As identified in the scope for the Water Plant Expansion Project, the State Revolving Fund PreQualification Form was submitted to CDPHE in May. The Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF)
program is a federal-state partnership that provides communities low-cost financing for a wide range
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29th

of water quality infrastructure projects. A pre-qualification meeting is set for June
with CDPHE’s
SRF representatives. The meeting agenda will cover the future project overview, project needs,
eligibility assessment, overview of loan program and planning, design/engineering grants. The process
for the loan program is outlined below.

Streets:
• Street Painting installations. Contractor services for centerline and bike lane striping is still scheduled
for June.
• Pothole and patching installations are being performed based on asphalt availability
• Downtown Alley’s: Staff is currently working to resolve drainage issues in the alley on the north side of
Main Street between Railroad Street and Colorado Ave. Survey and engineering services will be
required for this effort.
• Several sidewalk replacement projects are underway. Sidewalk removals and demo are being
performed at the following locations: Marquette Ave & Surrey Street and Brady Road. Staff is also
scheduling concrete grinding to level sidewalk stones in several locations.
• Staff will also be contracting thermal inlay crosswalks later this month.
Parks
• Normal summer operations
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•
•

The town parks are very busy. Trash service pickup at several location (Columbine Park) required
multiple times a day. The dumpsters located at Columbine Park and the tennis courts are at times
overflowing on Monday Morning. Additional
Staff is still waiting for Waste Management to respond for updated town facility needs quote. Chaffee
Waste has already provided a quote.

Facilities and Building Maintenance:
• Normal Operations
Fleet:
• Normal Operations
Highlights and Events
• Thank you to all the hard working volunteers and public works staff that provided time to
prepare for the 100 year anniversary “Collegiate Peaks Stampede Rodeo”!
• Recent Flyers

Respectfully Submitted,
Shawn Williams
Shawn Williams, Public Works Director
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DATE:

June 15/22, 2021

TO:

Mayor and Board of Trustees, Town of Buena Vista, CO, Airport Advisory Board

FROM:

Jack, Airport Manager

RE:

Airport Manager’s Report

Staff Report:
•
•
•

•
•

•
•

Staffing: Airport Manager, vacation: 25-28 June. Ops Specialist, vacation: 26Jul-1Aug
- Summer hours began May 27th until after Labor Day, (FBO open @ 0700-1700hrs).
Events: 26 June (Saturday): Salida Airport Airshow.
- 30 June / Evening / BV Airport: BV Young Life Fund Raiser.
Training Opportunity: Taylor-Airport Advisory Board Secretary and President of Chaffee County UAS Club
will conduct a UAS-FAA Part 107 certified Pilots course (26-30hrs) / $350. Tentative course dates / time 2nd
week of August: 1) Mon-Fri: 1-5pm, Sat and test on Sunday or 2) Mon-Fri: 5-9pm, Sat and test on Sunday.
He would like 5-6 students minimum. POC-Taylor Albrecht: tnlaviation.com / 719-581-2010
Operations: Notable increase in 12,500 lb+ operations and Jet A pumped in May over previous months and
previous years at this time. May 2019 - Ops Over 12,500: 5 | May 2019 - Jet A fuel sold: 2,796 gal
Other Airport Stuff: Ref Airport Advisory Board: Mark Godonis has moved Wyoming.
As such, Wayne Lee to replace Mark Godonis as Permanent Board Member. Mark to remain on as an
Alternate Board Member, (RESO 28).
- Airport to raise fuel prices: 100LL: $4.50 to $4.75 / Jet-A: $5.20 to $5.50.
- Airplane Crash: Mayday distress call went out approx. 0700hrs / 14June. Engine failure. AC crashed NE
of Buena Vista. East side of Buffalo Peak in the Meadows. Both Pilot and passenger walked away with
minor injuries. A Bell Helicopter in the vicinity picked up passengers and equipment and brought them
back to Buena Vista Airport. They used a courtesy car to drive themselves to the hospital. Note: AC did
not land or take-off, nor take on fuel at this airport. See attached report.
CCFD / BVFD: Coord with both departments for exchange of equipment.
- Will coord with CCFD for Hazmat and AC Accident Training.
Equipment / Vehicles: Vehicle status = green. Elevator inspected and certified, 9 April.
- Fence Line Repair: All West of Colorado - Fence Contractor: Temporary fencing installed for the
damaged fence sections. Cost = $1444.00. Still waiting for final estimate for permanent repairs. Repairs
expected to be completed in August.
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Operation’s Report:
May 2021 / Airport Ops
Total Based Aircraft
Total Transient Aircraft
Total Piston Aircraft
Total Jet/Turbine Aircraft
Total Aircraft
Total Operations
Total Persons Using Airport
Total Military Ops
Total Helicopter Ops
Total Ops over 12,500 lbs
Day W/O Ops

MTD
27
106
89
43
132
310
621
8
3
20
4

May 2020 / Airport Ops
Total Based Aircraft
Total Transient Aircraft
Total Piston Aircraft
Total Jet/Turbine Aircraft
Total Aircraft
Total Operations
Total Persons Using Airport
Total Military Ops
Total Helicopter Ops
Total Ops over 12,500 lbs
Days W/O Ops

YTD
93
420
390
120
510
1269
2561
47
24
53
22

MTD
38
84
109
13
122
276
317
9
2
5
3

YTD
106
275
301
68
369
891
1477
29
17
19
38

Fuel Sales
May 2021 Fuel Sales
Jet A fuel sold:

7,086 gal

100LL fuel sold:

913 gal

Thank You,
J Wyles
Jack Wyles
Airport Manager

May 2020 Fuel Sales

YTD: 11,692 gal

Jet A fuel sold:

1,316 gal

YTD: 6,830 gal

YTD: 3,802 gal

100LL fuel sold:

760 gal

YTD: 3,230 gal
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DATE:

June 17, 2021

TO:

Mayor and Board of Trustees

FROM:

Michelle Stoke, Treasurer

Agenda Item:: 2020 Audit Report

Request: The 2020 Audit has been completed and is attached for the Board to Review. It is requested
that the Board accept the report.
Overview:
We have been fortunate to retain the services of Hamblin & Associates to perform the 2020 Audit. They
performed their field work in March by performing tests on the books and records of the Town of Buena
Vista. There are two potential audit opinions which can be expressed in the Auditor’s opinion letter. The
first is an “un-modified opinion” which states that based on their testing and procedures they believe the
financial statements present fairly in all material respects. The second is “modified opinion” which can
arise for a large variety of reasons but generally means there is a material issue with the financial
reporting of the entity.
Colorado Revised Statues require a Management’s Discussion and Analysis section where the Finance
Management contrasts and compares several aspects of the financial statements between the current
year audit and the previous year audit.
The Notes to the Financial Statements section is also useful when evaluating the information presented
in the Audit report because the financial statements of governments are presented differently
depending on the objectives of the users of the financial statements.
The annual audit is required to be filed with the State Auditor by July 31th for calendar year
municipalities. This year the audit will be timely filed by June 30th, 2020
Analysis: The Town of Buena Vista has received an un-modified opinion regarding the 2020 financial
statements.
Policy Alignment: The yearly audit aligns with the Compliance Policy which requires Town to comply
with the laws and regulations applicable to the municipality. Colorado Revised Statues require an
annual audit of the books and records of statutory municipal governments
Budget Impact: None
BOT Action: A trustee should make a motion to accept or reject the 2020 Financial Statements and
Audit Report.
Attached:
-Auditor letter to the Board and Management.
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-Town of Buena Vista, Colorado Financial Statements and Audit Opinion Letter as of December 31,
2020.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) provides highlights of the financial activities of the
Town of Buena Vista (the Town) and an overview of the financial statements included in this report.
We encourage readers to consider this information in conjunction with the basic financial statements
and information contained in the notes to the financial statements.
Financial Highlights


The Town’s net position at the end of 2020 increased by $1,053,377 which is attributable to:
o In the General Fund; The “Incident Response” Department, run by the Fire department
staff, grossed $989,574 in revenue.
o Also, in the General Fund; In 2020 Sales Tax receipts increased by $446,534 over
2019 (12.9%).
o In the Water Fund; recorded an increase of $25,811 in service fees but showed a
decrease in system development fees of -$170,493.



Total assets on the Statement of Net Position were $28,049,414 at the end of 2020, an increase
of $387,837 or 1.4% increase in Assets over 2019 due to:
o Town continued to complete projects even through the COVID-19 shutdowns.



Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $23,500,432 of which $18,106,115 is attributed to fixed assets.



Unrestricted net position of $8,062,152 as of December 31, 2020, was available to meet the
Town’s future obligations to citizens, employees and creditors:
o For government activities unrestricted net position was $2,886,852, an increase of
$182,367 (6.74%). The increase is attributable to an increase of Sales Tax of $622,787
over 2019 and an increase of Capital and Operating Grants of $681,374
o For business-type activities unrestricted net position was $5,175,300 an increase of
$53,788 (1.05%) due to a decrease in Current Liabilities of $107,262.



At December 31, 2020, total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources fund balance and fund
balance and for governmental activities was $4,253,773 of which:
o $17,487 was held in the Conservation Trust Fund.
o $110,730 was held in the Capital Improvement Fund
o $503,483 was held in the Street Fund
o $3,622,073 was held in the General Fund
o The total increase during 2020 was $763,045 (20.82%). The government fund balance
sheet excludes the value of capital assets, causing a different financial result when
compared to the Statement of Net Position (as discussed above).



The total cash and investments balance at December 31, 2020 was $7,837,702 of which
$7,432,834 was unrestricted. Of the unrestricted amount, $2,481,496 was available for general
government activities and $4,951,338 was held in funds for business-type activities. Funds
designated by the trustees for specific uses, (such as the 27% emergency reserves) are included
in unrestricted cash and investments.



Cash and investments increased $1,294,169 in 2020 due to the increase in Sales Taxes, cash
infusion from the CARES relief bill, and projects being deferred due to the COVID-19 shutdown.
During 2020, required debt service and loan covenant restricted fund balance was $404,868 of
which $180,868 is attributable to payment on the 2018 CWRPDA loan associated with the Water
Fund and $224,000 was used to service the bonds issued in the Street Fund with $72,475
allocated to interest payment and $105,000 used to retire bonds
I
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Within the business-type activities of the Town.
o

Unrestricted funds available for water operations increased in 2020 by $85,206

o

Unrestricted funds for the airport operations decreased in 2020 by $94,849 due to a
decrease in activity because of COVID-19.

o

The Storm Water Fund showed an increase of $37,760 unrestricted fund balance.

Overview of the Financial Statements
The MD&A serves as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial statements, which are comprised of
three components:
1) Government-wide financial statements
2) Fund financial statements
a. Governmental Funds
b. Proprietary Funds
3) Notes to the financial statements
4) Supplementary information
Financial analysis and commentary on both types of financial statement views is included in the
MD&A for more information and perspective than the numbers alone provide readers. In addition, the
report contains supplementary information to the basic financial statements for more detailed
information on some areas of expenditures.
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the Town’s finances in a similar manner to a private-sector
business. Government-wide financial statements combine information for all the Town’s funds to
reflect the entire financial picture. The government-wide financial statements consist of the Statement
of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.
The Statement of Net Position presents all of Town’s assets, liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources, with the difference between assets and the liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the Town’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Town’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the changes occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future periods
(e.g. tax revenues earned but not collected and unused vacation leave).
Both government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (government activities) from functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (businesstype activities). The Town’s governmental activities include general government; public safety; public
works; and culture, parks, and recreation. Business-type activities include the operations of water
plant, airport and storm water management.
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 3-4 of this report.
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Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of Buena Vista,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All of Town’s funds can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds. The fund financial statements consist of the Balance Sheet
and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for each type of fund.
•

Governmental funds are used to account for the same functions reported as government
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. This information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.
The focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements; therefore, it is useful to compare the information presented for government funds with
similar information presented for government activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s
near-term financing decisions. Both the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities as presented in the government-wide
financial statements.
The Town maintains four governmental funds, the General Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, the
Street Fund and the Conservation Trust Fund, for which information is presented separately.
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 5-7.

•

Proprietary funds can be enterprise funds, to report the same functions presented as businesstype activities in the government-wide financial statements, or internal service funds, used as an
accounting device to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the Town’s various
functions. The Town maintains one enterprise fund to account for the water enterprise and one for
the airport. Additionally, the Town maintains a special revenue fund for storm water management.
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information
for the water, storm water and airport operations, which are the major funds of the Town of Buena
Vista.
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 8-10 of the report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 11- 46 of this report.
Supplementary information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
this report presents certain required supplementary information. Included in this report is a budgetary
comparison statement for all funds to demonstrate compliance with the budget. Buena Vista’s Town
council adopts an annual appropriated budget for all its funds.
The budgetary comparison schedules are on pages 49-52 and pages 59-62 of this report. Pension
analysis worksheets are on 53-58 and the Local Highway Finance Report is included on page 63.

III

43
Financial Analysis – Government-wide Financial Statements
This discussion of government-wide financial statements focuses primarily on the key indicator, net
position, and the activities that generate increases or decreases in this measurement. The Town’s
assets exceeded liabilities and deferred outflows of resources by $23,500,432 at December 31, 2020
which is an increase of $1,053,377 over the 2019 close.
Statement of Net Position. As of December 31, 2020, 41.94% of the Town’s total net position is
held in the governmental activities and 58.05% is held in the business-type activities, which includes
the Water Enterprise, the Storm Water Enterprise and the Airport Enterprise funds. The largest portion
of the Town’s net position (62.05%) reflects the investment of $14,582,130 in capital assets such as:
land, buildings, transportation infrastructure, water infrastructure, and machinery and equipment, net
of any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The Town uses these assets to provide
services to the public; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
Town’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
BusinessGovernmental

type

Activities

Activities

2020

2020

BusinessGovernmental

type

Total

Activities

Activities

Total

2020

2019

2019

2019

ASSETS
Current Assets

$ 4,408,815

5,534,484

$ 9,943,299

$ 3,787,989

Capital Assets

8,535,688

$

9,570,427

18,106,115

8,819,182

$

9,435,367

5,619,039

$

18,254,549

9,407,028

Total Assets

12,944,503

15,104,911

28,049,414

12,607,171

15,054,406

27,661,577

445,199

-

445,199

312,314

-

312,314

3,059,285

271,029

3,330,314

2,751,088

378,291

3,129,379

-

1,191,273

1,191,273

-

1,837,162

1,837,162

3,059,285

1,462,302

4,521,587

2,751,088

2,215,453

4,966,541

472,594

-

472,594

560,295

-

560,295

6,295,688

8,286,442

14,582,130

6,479,182

7,505,493

13,984,675

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

675,283

180,868

856,151

424,435

211,948

636,383

2,886,852

5,175,300

8,062,152

2,704,485

5,121,512

7,825,997

$ 9,857,823

$ 13,642,609

$ 23,500,432

$ 9,608,102

$ 12,838,953

$ 22,447,055

Of the Town’s total net position, $404,868 (1.72%) is restricted for debt service and $171,800 (.73%)
is restricted for emergencies (TABOR Reserve) and $279,483 (1.19%) is restricted in compliance with
the Street Bond covenants. The remaining $8,062,152 (34.31%) is unrestricted net position available
to meet the Town’s on-going obligations to the public and creditors. Of the unrestricted net position,
$2,886,852 (35.81%) was held by Governmental Activities and $5,175,300 (64.19%) was held by
Business-Type Activities.
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Statement of Activities. As the following table illustrates, the Town’s total net position increased
$1,050,255 during 2020. By fund type, governmental activities net position increased by $249,721
and business-type activities generated an increase in net position of $800,534.
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Governmental

Business-type

Activities

Activities

2020

2019

2020

Total
2019

2020

2019

Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services

$

Operating grants & contributions
Capital grants & contributions

248,342

$

292,588

$

1,469,738

$

1,810,813

$

1,718,080

$

2,103,401

1,174,492

493,118

834,668

645,591

2,009,160

1,138,709

3,000

271,194

40,360

291,275

43,360

562,469

General revenues:
Property taxes

441,203

422,928

-

-

441,203

422,928

Sales taxes

4,548,363

3,925,576

-

-

4,548,363

3,925,576

Other taxes

274,426

326,548

6,166

7,727

280,592

334,275

66,278

142,725

64,072

60,830

130,350

203,555

6,756,104

5,874,677

2,415,004

2,816,236

9,171,108

8,690,913

General government

1,752,432

1,265,650

-

-

1,752,432

1,265,650

Public safety

2,629,778

1,886,343

-

-

2,629,778

1,886,343

Community services

405,592

344,334

-

-

405,592

344,334

Public works

857,566

353,654

-

-

857,566

353,654

Culture and recreation

764,015

818,929

-

-

764,015

818,929

-

-

954,008

837,619

954,008

837,619

Airport

-

-

723,470

847,791

723,470

847,791

Alternative energy

-

-

-

3,645

-

3,645

Storm water

-

-

33,992

560

33,992

560

Total Expenses

6,409,383

4,668,910

1,711,470

1,689,615

8,120,853

6,358,525

346,721

1,205,767

703,534

1,126,621

1,050,255

2,332,388

Investment and other revenue
Total Revenue
Expenses

Water

Changes in net positionnormal operations
Non-operational changes:
Increase/(decrease)

249,721

Net Position, Beginning
Net Position, Ending

(40,000)

(97,000)

Change in Net Position

1,165,767

9,608,102
$

9,857,823

8,442,335
$

9,608,102

97,000

21,253

-

800,534

1,147,874

1,050,255

12,842,075
$

13,642,609

11,694,201
$

12,842,075

(18,747)
2,313,641

22,450,177
$

23,500,432

20,136,536
$

22,450,177

Governmental activities. Financing for governmental activities was primarily from Town and County
sales tax revenues, which provided 67.32% of general fund revenue in 2020. Additionally, Property
taxes provided 6.53% of general fund revenue. In 2020 Operating Grants and Contributions provided
17.38% of General Fund revenue. No other income sources provided 10% or more of total General
Fund.
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Key elements of the $249,721 increase in net position for governmental activities during 2020 and a
comparison to 2019 follows:
o

o

Total sales tax receipts increased $622,787 (15.86%) over 2019. Town sales tax totaled
$3,081,060 (including the .5% dedicated to the street fund) and the allocation from Chaffee
County tax totaled $1,401,7367 which represents an increase of 13.75% and 11.41%,
respectively, compared to 2019. Sales taxes are an indicator of the level of general economic
activity in the community which is dependent upon the influx of visitors throughout the year,
but especially during the summer months.
Charges for services (licenses, fees, permits and leases) decreased $44,246 (-15.12%)
compared to 2019.

Business-Type Activities. The money to pay for business-type activities is generated primarily from
fees charged for services. Revenue derived from operations is supplemented by grants and capital
contributions (including water system development fees).
Key elements of the $800,534 increase in net position for business-type activities during 2020
compared to 2019 follows:
o
o
o
o

Charges for Water services increased $90,459 (9.16%) due to the hot dry summer.
Fuel sales and rental revenue at the Airport decreased -$333,199 (-54.09%) as testing activity
decreased
Capital revenue in the Water Fund decreased $170,493 (27.94%) due to new building activity
slowing because of the pandemic, fewer tap fees being paid.
Excluding transfers between funds, total expenses in Business Type Funds totaled $1,688,054
increasing by $3,751 (.2%) which is a marginal increase the Water Fund and Airport Funds
given the decrease in revenue.

Financial Analysis – Fund Financial Statements
As noted earlier, the Town of Buena Vista uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. This section of the report provides a narrative of
the fund financial statements.
Governmental funds. The focus of the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -- Governmental Funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the Town of Buena Vista’s financial requirements.
The Town of Buena Vista Governmental Funds consists of the General Fund, the Conservation Trust
Fund, the Streets Fund and the Capital Improvement Fund.
As of December 31, 2020, the Town of Buena Vista’s combined governmental funds reported ending
fund balance of $3,057,766 an increase of $294,653 as compared to December 31, 2019. The
unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the Town’s discretion, was $2,397,787
which represented 78.42% of the total Governmental funds’ equity. The balance sheet reflects the
categorization of fund balance in accordance with GASB 54.
The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. All activities that are not required to be
accounted for in separate funds either by state or local ordinance or by a desire to maintain a
matching of revenues and expenses are accounted for in this fund. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances shows 2020 General Fund revenues exceeded
expenditures by $701,259. This was the result of higher than expected sales tax collections and lower
than planned expenditures.
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The Conservation Trust Fund (CTF) decreased fund balance by -$6,717 due to additional spending
on parks and trails in 2020. The CTF receives money from lottery proceeds that are distributed by the
state to local governments based on population. The Fund Balance as of December 31, 2020 was
$17,487.
Proprietary funds. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Net Fund Position – Proprietary Funds, provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements but in more detail.
Total unrestricted net position as of December 31, 2020 was $5,175,300, an increase of $53,788
(1.05%) over December 31, 2019.
The investment in capital assets net of depreciation increased by $135,060 (1.43%) in 2020. These
capital investments help to ensure service for residents and serve to generate future revenues for the
water fund.
Budgetary Highlights
The budget comparison schedules are shown on Pages 49-52 and 59-63 which compares the final
2020 budget and actual expenditures. This section of the report primarily focuses on areas that were
different from expectations set in the budget and changes from the prior year.
General Fund. Actual financial results differed from the original budget primarily due to greater sales
tax revenue than was expected for the year. Sales tax collections for 2020 exceeded 2019 by 10% or
more in all twelve months. Revenue from sales tax was budgeted to be 3.5% higher than 2019. Actual
collections of the town sales tax grew by 13.75% in 2020.
Buena Vista’s share of the county-wide sales tax was $1,401,736 in 2020 representing 11.41%
growth over 2019.
Capital Improvement Fund. Total actual expenditures for vehicles, equipment, street improvements,
Buildings, Land, Infrastructures and park improvements in 2020 totaled $579,042 which overspent the
final budget by $179,855.
Water Enterprise Fund. During 2020 revenue was realized in the amount of $1,647,961, which was
in excess of the final budget by $70,477.
Airport Enterprise Fund. In 2020 the airport final budget for revenue was $1,009,000. Actual
revenue was $216,709 lower.
Capital Assets. Town’s investment in capital assets for governmental activities as of December 31,
2020 totaled $8,535,689 net of accumulated depreciation and investment in capital assets for
business type activities as $9,570,428 net of accumulated depreciation.
Long-term Debt
In the business-type activities, the long-term debt was $1,283,985 at a rate of 1% at December 31,
2020 payable to the Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority (CWRPDA) which
will be fully retired in November 2038.
In the Governmental activities a bond was obtained in 2012 including expenses in the amount of
$3,029,955. The remaining balance on this long-term bond debt was $2,240,000 as of December 31,
2020 and is serviced by Wells Fargo.
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Economic Factors and Financial Outlook
2022 Budget. As the Town moves into the 2022 budget cycle the economic outlook has begun to be
more predictable after the uncertainty of COVID-19’s effect on the economy. Staff will budget
conservatively, however, halfway through 2021 it is becoming more apparent that tourism will surge in
response to being stifled over the last 18 months. Despite the lockdown, sales tax grew by almost
13% and Town realized a healthy budget surplus in 2020. Sales tax growth is on track in 2021 to be at
double or more of that growth rate. The impending threat of inflation is looming and could put a
damper on the economy
Some of the key budget considerations are outlined below:
o

o
o
o

Staffing – 2021 saw the decrease of staffing by 4 firefighters as Town negotiated to have
Chaffee County Fire provide structure fire services, this move allows Town to look toward
hiring a long term planner and another police officer;
Employee health insurance – likely to show a 6%-7% increase;
Sales tax revenue – revenue forecast is optimistic due to the healthy growth in the first quarter
of 2021;
Water rates – Water rate study to be done to determine if rates should be increased to provide
for increased growth and the commensurate demand for water.

Total fund balances showed surprising growth in 2020 and is continuing along the same trajectory in
2021. Expectations for growth during 2022 are not unreasonable.
The Town has debt in the street fund. Debt service obligations will be $105,000 of principal and
$69,850 of interest in 2022.
2022 budget appropriations are expected to increase based on the extent and length of the rebound
in the economy after COVID-19.
Fiscal Sustainability Issues. The economy of Buena Vista has had three major fiscal components
over the past approximately ten years. They are housing construction, the state prison and summer
tourism. All three of these components play a role in the generation of sales tax which is the Town’s
main revenue source.
The Fed is still keeping interest rates relatively low and has stated they will not raise rates unless they
see sustained inflation. The economy is still somewhat unpredictable and there are still rolling
shortages of goods. An increased demand on housing inventory resulting from urban flight has
resulted in a severe shortage in affordable housing. This shortage has had a negative impact on the
state prison and tourist related businesses as new employees are frequently commuting from other
communities which have more affordable housing available. Few new businesses have opened
throughout 2020 and 2021 and several have closed because of the shutdown orders in 2020 and
2021. If the housing issue can be addressed in a quickly, there is a likelihood that retirees and young
professionals will continue to relocate to Buena Vista to enjoy the recreational amenities and
temperate weather.
Prior to the shutdown created by COVID-19, Buena Vista was showing robust growth in sales tax.
During the shutdown, sales tax attributed to tourism which was lost due to the abrupt cessation of the
service business activity was offset in large part by sales tax remittances from remote sellers in
response to the Wayfair-v-South Dakota ruling.
During the next calendar year, major fiscal sustainability efforts will be underway. In addition to the
effect of COVID-19 and the economic recovery from the shutdown, other issues to be addressed
include; cost inflation for employee healthcare, fuel, asphalt, natural gas and electricity, the
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uncertainty of tourism and how business models will have to change to attract visitors, and finding a
way to diversify Town revenue sources.
Town leaders are focused on defining the role of local government in our community and balancing
limited resources with requests for additional services. In addition, decreases to government funding
have had a deeper impact on the local economy. The Town plans to resume an increased level of
capital spending for roads and public infrastructure as compared to historic levels.
Requests for information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Buena Vista’s financial
position for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed
to the Town of Buena Vista, Colorado, P.O. Box 2002, Buena Vista, CO 81211.
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Certified Public Accountants
Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
23720 Pondview Place
Golden, CO 80439

(303) 694-2727

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Town Council
Town of Buena Vista
Buena Vista, Colorado
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, and each major fund of the Town of Buena Vista, Colorado as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each
major fund of the Town of Buena Vista, Colorado, as of December 31, 2020, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other-Matters

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages I-VIII, budgetary comparison information of the
General Fund and Conservation Trust Fund, and pension schedules be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of Buena Vista, Colorado’s financial statements as a whole. The
Capital Improvement Fund, Water Fund, Airport Enterprise Fund, and Storm Water Enterprise
Fund budgetary comparison schedules and the Local Highway Finance Report are supplementary
information for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial
statements.
The other supplementary information schedules are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Hamblin and Associates
Golden, Colorado
June 8, 2021
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2020

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Investments
Grants receivable
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Property taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses
Net pension asset
Inventories, net
Capital assets, net
Total Assets

$

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows due to pensions
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll liabilities
Accrued compensated absences
Deposits/escrow accounts
Unearned revenue
Premium on bond payable
Notes payable - due within one year
Notes payable - due in more than one year
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows due to pensions
Unavailable revenue - property taxes
Total Deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for emergencies (TABOR)
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for streets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

Business Type
Activities

Total

567,590
224,000
1,913,906
125,130
315,366
610,878
464,562
32,341
155,042
8,535,688
12,944,503

$ 1,578,453
180,868
3,372,885
20,000
276,582
105,697
9,570,427
15,104,911

445,199

-

445,199

449,436
67,471
265,175
16,834
20,369
105,000
2,135,000
3,059,285

130,776
1,759
34,038
11,744
92,712
1,191,273
1,462,302

580,212
1,759
101,509
265,175
28,578
20,369
197,712
3,326,273
4,521,587

8,032
464,562
472,594

-

8,032
464,562
472,594

6,295,688
171,800
224,000
279,483
2,886,852

8,286,442
180,868
5,175,300

14,582,130
171,800
404,868
279,483
8,062,152

9,857,823

$ 13,642,609

$ 23,500,432

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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2,146,043
404,868
5,286,791
145,130
591,948
610,878
464,562
32,341
155,042
105,697
18,106,115
28,049,414
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

EXPENSES
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Governmental Activities
Current:
General government
Public safety
Community services
Public works
Culture and recreation
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Business-Type Activities
Current:
Water operations
Airport operations
Storm water
TOTAL BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES
TOTAL GOVERNMENT

$ 1,752,432
2,629,778
405,592
857,566
764,015

PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING
CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR
GRANTS AND
GRANTS AND
SERVICES
CONTRIBUTIONS
CONTRIBUTIONS

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
TYPE ACTIVITES
TOTAL

$

$

68,233
38,346
100,029
41,734

$

1,109,738
281
64,473

$

3,000
-

(574,461)
(2,591,432)
(405,592)
(754,256)
(657,808)

$

$

248,342

1,174,492

3,000

954,008
723,470
33,992

1,103,861
294,125
71,752

439,668
395,000
-

40,360
-

-

629,881
(34,345)
37,760

629,881
(34,345)
37,760

1,677,478

1,469,738

834,668

40,360

-

633,296

633,296

$

1,718,080

$

2,009,160

$

43,360

GENERAL REVENUES
Taxes
Property
Specific ownership
General sales
Franchise
Other
Investment income
Transfers
Miscellaneous
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION - Beginning of Year
$

NET POSITION - End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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-

(574,461)
(2,591,432)
(405,592)
(754,256)
(657,808)

6,409,383

$ 8,086,861

(4,983,549)

-

(4,983,549)

(4,983,549)

633,296

(4,350,253)

441,203
50,253
4,548,363
79,461
144,712
27,994
(97,000)
38,284

6,166
64,072
97,000
-

441,203
50,253
4,548,363
79,461
150,878
92,066
38,284

5,233,270

167,238

5,400,508

249,721

800,534

1,050,255

9,608,102

12,842,075

22,450,177

9,857,823

$

13,642,609

$

23,500,432
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2020

GENERAL
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Property taxes receivable
Grants receivable
Prepaid expenses
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Due to other funds
Developer deposits - refundable
Unearned revenue

CONSERVATION CAPITAL
TRUST
IMPROVEMENT STREETS

TOTAL

$ 1,047,519
1,268,150
315,366
514,504
464,562
11,972

$ (295,469)
312,956
-

$ (347,200)
332,800
125,130
-

$ 386,740
96,374
20,369

$ 791,590
1,913,906
315,366
610,878
464,562
125,130
32,341

$ 3,622,073

$

17,487

$

110,730

$ 503,483

$ 4,253,773

$ 305,915
265,175
16,834

$

-

$

143,521
-

$

-

$ 449,436
265,175
16,834

TOTAL LIABILITIES

587,924

-

143,521

-

731,445

464,562

-

-

-

464,562

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for TABOR
Restricted for debt service
Restricted - Streets
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

171,800
2,397,787

17,487
-

(32,791)
-

224,000
279,483
-

171,800
224,000
279,483
17,487
(32,791)
2,397,787

TOTAL FUND BALANCE

2,569,587

17,487

(32,791)

503,483

3,057,766

$ 503,483

$ 4,253,773

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE
$ 3,622,073

$

17,487

$

110,730

TOTAL FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

$ 3,057,766

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not resources and
are not reported in the funds:
Capital Assets
Accumulated Depreciation

16,532,767
(7,997,079)

Pension assets and deferred outflows are not current, therefore are not reported in the funds:
Net Pension Asset (Liability)
Deferred Outflows Because of Pensions
Deferred Inflows Because of Pensions

155,042
445,199
(8,032)

Earned but unpaid accumulated leave balances are not reported in the funds:
Compensated Absences

(67,471)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period:
Bonds Payable
Premium on Bond Payable
TOTAL NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

(2,240,000)
(20,369)
$ 9,857,823

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

GENERAL

CONSERVATION
CAPITAL
TRUST
IMPROVEMENT

STREETS

TOTAL

3,000
24,995
2,413
-

$ 649,789
281
3,393
-

$ 5,155,749
209,996
20,753
1,268,770
34,558
27,994
38,284

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines
Intergovernmental
Contributions
Interest income
Other

$ 4,505,960
209,996
20,753
1,235,574
9,282
20,101
38,284

TOTAL REVENUES

6,039,950

32,283

30,408

653,463

6,756,104

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Community services
Public works
Culture and recreation

1,425,196
2,508,064
388,120
502,483
514,828

-

1,032
372,296
49,385
55,354
100,975

446,716
-

1,426,228
2,880,360
437,505
1,004,553
615,803

5,338,691

-

579,042

446,716

6,364,449

701,259

32,283

(548,634)

206,747

391,655

(451,603)

(39,000)

393,603

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

249,656

(6,717)

(155,031)

206,747

294,655

FUND BALANCES - Beginning

2,319,931

24,204

122,240

296,736

2,763,111

$ 503,483

$ 3,057,766

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in (out)

FUND BALANCES - Ending

$ 2,569,587

$

$

30,196
2,087
-

17,487

$

$

(32,791)

-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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(97,000)
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

$

Principal payments on debt are reported as expenditures in the funds and
debt proceeds are shown as revenues:
Principal Payments on Bonds Payable
Amortization of Bond Premium

100,000
1,198

Earned but unpaid accumulated leave balances are not reported in the funds:
Change in Accrued Compensated Absences

8,282

FPPA pension changes are not recorded in the funds

155,120

Purchases of capital assets are expensed in governmental funds and
depreciated on the statement of activities:
Net Change Capitalized Assets
Depreciation Expense
CHANGE IN NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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294,655

455,960
(765,494)
$

249,721
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITIONPROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2020

WATER
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and equivalents
Cash and equivalents - restricted
Investments
Grants receivable
Accounts receivable
Prepaids
Inventory
Total Current Assets

TOTAL

220,214
6,593
226,807

10,959,562
(4,668,116)
6,291,446

10,640,166
(7,361,185)
3,278,981

-

11,445,942

3,432,162

226,807

15,104,911

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Other accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Accrued salaries and benefits
Current portion of long-term debt
Total Current Liabilities

84,041
680
11,744
781
92,712
189,958

46,735
298
47,033

-

130,776
680
11,744
1,079
92,712
236,991

Long-Term Liabilities
Notes and loans payable
Accrued compensated absences
Total Long-Term Liabilities

1,191,273
24,721
1,215,994

9,317
9,317

-

1,191,273
34,038
1,225,311

TOTAL LIABILITIES

1,405,952

56,350

-

1,462,302

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

5,007,461
180,868
4,851,662

3,278,981
96,831

226,807

8,286,442
180,868
5,175,300

$ 10,039,990

$ 3,375,812

$ 226,807

$ 13,642,609

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL NET POSITION

$

STORM
WATER

(101,219)
20,000
182,088
52,312
153,181

Non-current Assets
Capital assets
Property, plant and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Total Non-current Assets

$ 1,459,458
180,868
3,372,885
0
87,901
53,385
5,154,496

AIRPORT

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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$

1,578,453
180,868
3,372,885
20,000
276,582
105,697
5,534,484

21,599,728
(12,029,301)
9,570,427
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

WATER
OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales
Water meter sales
Stormwater fees
Finance charges
Fuel sales
Rental revenue
Other revenues
Other fees

$ 1,077,896
4,456
1,595
19,117
797

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

1,103,861

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits
Fuel for resale
Professional services
Insurance
Other general and administrative
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and building operations
Capital outlay
Depreciation

AIRPORT
$

235,294
47,562
11,269

STORM
WATER
$

TOTAL

71,752
-

$

1,077,896
4,456
71,752
1,595
235,294
47,562
19,117
12,066

294,125

71,752

1,469,738

426,718
127,305
6,021
38,846
13,891
6,831
40,680
12,741
212,461

219,201
134,933
7,191
20,055
56,322
31,402
7,025
3,214
(4,503)
248,630

33,992
-

645,919
134,933
134,496
26,076
129,160
45,293
13,856
43,894
8,238
461,091

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

930,592

723,470

33,992

1,688,054

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

173,269

(429,345)

37,760

(218,316)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Investment income
Grants and contributions
Other taxes
Interest and fiscal charges
Transfer in
Gain (loss) on sale of asset
Cash capital contributions
Infrastructure capital contributions

64,072
40,360
(23,416)
439,668
-

395,000
6,166
97,000
-

-

64,072
435,360
6,166
(23,416)
97,000
439,668
-

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUE

520,684

498,166

-

1,018,850

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

693,953

68,821

37,760

800,534

9,346,037

3,306,991

189,047

12,842,075

$ 10,039,990

$ 3,375,812

$ 226,807

$ 13,642,609

NET POSITION - Beginning
NET POSITION - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

WATER
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

$ 1,103,849
(674,239)
429,610

STORM
WATER

AIRPORT
$

385,351
(435,428)
(50,077)

$

TOTAL

71,588
(33,992)
37,596

$ 1,560,788
(1,143,659)
417,129

Cash Flows From Non-capital Financing Activities:
Grants and contributions received
Net Cash Provided by Non-capital Financing Activities

40,360
40,360

395,000
492,000

-

435,360
532,360

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
System development/resources fees
Additions to fixed assets
Loan Principal Payments
Loan interest payments and fiscal charges

439,668
(207,402)
(76,775)
(23,416)

(389,752)
-

-

439,668
(597,154)
(76,775)
(23,416)

132,075

(389,752)

-

(257,677)

Net Cash (Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest received
Net Cash Used by Investing Activites

64,072
64,072

-

-

64,072
64,072

666,117

52,171

37,596

755,884

4,347,093

(153,390)

182,618

4,376,321

Cash - Ending

$ 5,013,210

$ (101,219)

$ 220,214

$ 5,132,205

Cash and investments
Restricted cash
Investments

$ 1,459,458
180,868
3,372,885

$ (101,219)
-

$ 220,214
-

$ 1,578,453
180,868
3,372,885

Total Cash - Ending

$ 5,013,210

$ (101,219)

$ 220,214

$ 5,132,205

$

$ (429,345)

$

$ (218,316)

Net Increase in Cash
Cash - Beginning

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued compensated absences
Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

173,269

212,461

$

248,630

-

461,091

(5,388)
28,201

107,890
(16,664)

(164)
-

102,338
11,537

20,801
5,376
(6,074)
964
256,341

33,562
(9,723)
6,079
379,268

(164)

54,363
5,376
(15,797)
7,043
635,445

429,610

$

(50,077)

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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37,760

37,596

$

417,129

TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Town of Buena Vista (the Town) was incorporated under Colorado statutes in
1879 and provides services related to public safety, highways and streets, airport,
water, recreation, planning and zoning, and general administration. The Town is the
lowest level of government having oversight responsibility and control over all
activities within the geographical area organized as the Town of Buena Vista,
Colorado. The Town is located in Chaffee County, Colorado and is governed by an
elected Mayor and Board of Trustees (the Town Board), which are responsible for
setting policy, appointing administrative personnel and adopting an annual budget.
The Town's financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the town's accounting policies are described below.
A. Reporting Entity
The financial statements of the reporting entity include those of the Town (the
primary government) and its component units. The criteria used in determining the
scope of the reporting entity are based on the provisions of GASB Statement No.
14, The Financial Reporting Entity (GASB 14), as amended by GASB Statement
No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units - an
amendment of GASB 14. The requirements for inclusion as a component unit are
based primarily upon whether the Town is considered financially accountable for
the potential component unit. The Town is financially accountable if it appoints a
voting majority of a potential component unit's governing body and is able to
impose its will on that potential component unit, or because the potential
component unit will provide specific a financial benefit to or impose a specific
financial burden on the Town. The Town does not have any component units.
Basis of Presentation
The Town's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the
Town as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Town's major
funds).
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and
the statement of activities) report information on all the activities of the primary
government, excluding fiduciary activities. The effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements, with the exception of interfund services provided
and used.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses
of the given function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes,
unrestricted interest earnings and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
Fund Financial Statements
Following the government-wide financial statements are separate financial
statements for governmental funds. Major individual governmental funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The total fund
balances for all governmental funds is reconciled to total net position for
governmental activities as shown on the statement of net position. The net change
in fund balance for all governmental funds is reconciled to the total change in net
position as shown on the statement of activities in the government-wide financial
statements.
Fund Accounting
The Town uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is
defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with self-balancing accounts.
Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds
based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which
spending activities are controlled. The Town has all three categories of funds:
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.
Governmental Funds
Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the
Town are financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of the Town's expendable
financial resources and the related liabilities (except those accounted for in the
proprietary fund) are accounted for through governmental funds. The
measurement focus is on determination of and changes in financial position, rather
than on net income. The following are the Town's governmental major funds:
The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund and is the general operating fund
of the Town.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
The Conservation Trust Fund accounts for receipts and expenditures with
respect to State allocations of lottery proceeds.
The Street Fund accounts for street expenditures funded by a half-cent street
improvement sales tax.
The Capital Improvement Fund accounts for receipts and expenditures with
respect to capital projects. Revenues derived by this fund include cash-in-lieu
fees from developers for parks, open space and trails, and capital grants.
Proprietary Funds
Proprietary funds are used to account for activities that are similar to those found
in the private sector. The measurement focus is on the determination of net
income and capital maintenance. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues
and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the Town's enterprise funds are charges to customers for
sales and services. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting these definitions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
Of the types of proprietary funds (enterprise and internal service funds), the Town
has the following proprietary funds:
Enterprise Funds - the enterprise fund is used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where
the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing
basis is to be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The Town has
the following enterprise funds:
The Water Fund accounts for all the activities necessary for the provision of
water services to Town residents.
The Airport Fund accounts for all the activities necessary for the operation of
the Town's general aviation airport.
The Storm Water Fund accounts for all the activities necessary for the Town
drainage system.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
Measurement focus refers to whether financial statements measure changes in
current resources only (current financial focus) or changes in both current and
long-term resources (long-term economic focus). Basis of accounting refers to the
point at which revenues, expenditures, or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements.
Long-Term Economic Focus and Accrual Basis
Governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements, the proprietary fund financial statements, and the fiduciary fund
financial statements use the long-term economic focus and are presented on the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses
are recognized when incurred, regardless of timing of the related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
Current Financial Focus and Modified Accrual Basis
The governmental fund financial statements use the current financial focus and are
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal period. The primary
revenue sources, which have been treated as susceptible to accrual by the Town,
are property tax, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues and other taxes. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the Town.
Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences,
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due (i.e. matured).

14

TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2020

64

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
The Town considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. State statutes and Town policy
authorize the Town to invest in obligations of the United States or any agency
thereof, time deposit certificates, and repurchase agreements. The Pension Trust
Funds are also authorized to invest in corporate common or preferred stocks,
bonds and mortgages, real or personal property, and other evidence of
indebtedness or ownership (excluding any debt of the Town itself), and individual
insurance policies.
D. Restricted Assets
Certain resources set aside for emergencies, specified voter approved projects
and Water Fund operations and maintenance reserves are classified as restricted
assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by Colorado State
Statutes, enabling legislation and debt covenants.
E. Receivables
The Town uses the allowance method for recognizing the uncollectable delinquent
accounts receivable. At December 31, 2020, no allowance has been established,
as all amounts are considered collectible. Each October, any utility bills more than
60 days old are certified to the County Treasurer for collection with the property
taxes to be collected the following year.
F. Property Taxes
Property taxes are assessed in one year as a lien on the property, but not
collected by governmental units until the subsequent year. In accordance with
GAAP, the assessed, but uncollected, property taxes for calendar year 2020 have
been recorded as a receivable and as deferred revenue. Property taxes are billed
and collected by Chaffee County, Colorado and distributed to the municipalities
and special districts within the county the month after collection.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
G. Inventories
Water parts are valued at market values based on current pricing. Airport fuel
inventories are valued at average cost.
H. Interfund Receivables and Payables
Transfers of resources from a fund receiving revenue to the fund through which
the resources are to be expended are recorded as transfers. Such transfers are
reported as other financing sources (uses) in the governmental funds and transfers
in (out) in the proprietary funds.
Transactions between the Town's various funds are accounted for as revenues
and expenditures or expenses in the funds involved if they are similar to
transactions with organizations external to Town government.
Activity between funds that is representative of borrowing/lending arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as either "due to/due from
other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as "internal balances."
In the process of aggregating data for the statement of net position and the
statement of activities some amounts reported on interfund activity and balances in
the funds have been eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables
were eliminated to minimize the "grossing up" effect on assets and liabilities within
the governmental activities column.
I. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Town has one item
qualifying for this category: the collective deferred outflows related to the Town’s
net pension obligation. Pension contributions made after the measurement date,
and the net difference between projected and actual earnings will be recognized
as a change of the net pension liability or asset in future periods.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
I. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources (Continued)
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The Town has two types of items that qualify
for reporting in this category. Unavailable revenue from property taxes, reported in
the governmental balance sheet are deferred and recognized as an inflow from
resources in the period that the amounts become available. Collective deferred
inflows related to the Town’s net pension obligation are reported on the Statement
of Net Position and are amortized over the average service lives of participants.
J. Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, equipment, and infrastructure (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental
or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Purchased or
constructed assets are recorded at historical cost where historical records are
available or estimated historical costs where no historical records exist. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that does not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend the asset's life is not capitalized. Improvements are
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related fixed
assets, as applicable.
Capital assets (excluding land, water rights, construction in progress and capital
assets held for other government) are depreciated using the straight-line method
over the following estimated useful lives:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and vehicles
Infrastructure

7 - 20 years
10 - 50 years
5 - 20 years
7 - 40 years

Capital assets held for other government represents a sewer line constructed in
2004 and 2005 from several funding sources, including Federal grants. This sewer
line will ultimately be conveyed to the Buena Vista Sanitation District, the
government responsible for providing sanitation services within Town boundaries.
No depreciation is reported by the Town for the sewer line as a separate
government is the operator of this system and the Town does not recognize any
associated revenue.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
K. Compensated Absences
Vacation, sick leave, and compensatory time are accrued as earned. Accumulated
unpaid vacation, compensatory time, and vested sick leave amounts are recorded
in the government-wide financial statements by fund. The Town's personnel policy
imposes limits on the maximum accrual of accumulated vacation time and sick
leave. Upon termination, accrued unpaid vacation and compensatory time will be
paid to the employee. Accrued sick leave has a cash value upon termination only if
the employee has at least five years of full-time service with the Town at
termination. Accrued compensated absences are liquidated by the fund that
incurred the liability during the employee's employment.
A liability for vested, accrued leave time is reported in the governmental funds only
if the amounts due at year end have matured.
L. Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability or asset, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the Town’s defined benefit pension
plan and additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position of the Town’s
defined benefit pension plans have been determined using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.
M. Long-Term Debt
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt is reported as a liability in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement
of net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current
period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
N. Net Position
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net position is
displayed in three components as follows:
Net Investment in Capital Assets - This consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, less the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvements of those assets.
Restricted - This consists of net position legally restricted by outside parties or by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Unrestricted - This consists of net position not meeting the definition of
"restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt."
When an expense is incurred for purposes for which restricted and unrestricted net
position is available, the Town's policy is to apply restricted net position first.
O. Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

•
•

•

The following fund balance classifications describe the relative strength of the
spending constraints placed on a government's fund balance and purposes for
which resources can be used:
Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as
inventory) or are required to be maintained intact.
Restricted fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes stipulated by
external resource providers (such as grantor, bondholders, and higher levels of
government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.
Restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the consent of the resource
providers.
Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes stipulated by
a government itself, determined by formal action by the Board of Trustees. to be
reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless
changed by the Board of Trustees.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
O. Fund Balance-. Governmental Funds (Continued)

• Assigned fund balance - amounts the Town intends to use for a specific purpose
as expressed by management.

• Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose; positive
amounts are reported only in the general fund.

The Town Board of Trustees establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance
commitments by passage of a resolution or ordinance. Each December the budget
is adopted by resolution for the coming year. A fund balance commitment is
indicated in the budget by the use of reserves. The budget document will also
identify the budgeted use of any restricted funds planned in the budget.
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the Town considers restricted funds to have
been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned,
or unassigned fund balances are available, the Town considers amounts to have
been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally
unassigned funds, as needed, unless Town Council has provided otherwise in its
commitment or assignment actions.
P. Use of Estimates
The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the basic financial statements and
the accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
NOTE 2: CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
The Town's investment policy conforms to the investment policy guidelines set forth
by the State of Colorado. The Town's investment policy sets the primary objectives of
investments activities to be safety, liquidity, and yield, in that order. The policy sets a
conservative, "prudent person" approach to investment purchases and management
of the overall portfolio. The Town's Volunteer Firefighters Pension Trust is managed
by the Fire and Police Pension Association of Colorado in accordance with State
statute.
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NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

At year end, the Town had the following deposits and investments as reported in the
financial statements:

Cash on hand
Demand deposits
Investments

$

Total

$

Amount
1,068
1,624,715
5,197,377
6,823,160

A. Deposits
The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local
government deposit cash in eligible depositories. The statutes specify eligible
depositories for public cash deposits, which must be Colorado institutions and
must maintain federal insurance (FDIC) on deposits held. Each eligible depository
with deposits in excess of the insured levels must pledge a collateral pool of
defined eligible assets maintained by another institution or held in trust for all of its
local government depositors as a group with a market value of at least 102% of the
uninsured deposits. The State Regulatory Commission for banks and savings and
loan associations are required by statute to monitor the naming of eligible
depositories and reporting of the uninsured deposits and assets maintained in the
collateral pools.
As of December 31, 2020, the Town had deposits of $2,448,708. Depositor's
insurance (FDIC) covers $250,000 of this amount; the balance is covered by
PDPA.
B. Investments
The Town's investment policy lists the authorized investment types as defined by
Colorado statutes. Authorized investments include: direct obligations of the United
States, obligations of U.S. government agencies, general or revenue obligations of
any state of the United States, any territory, or political subdivision of any state,
qualified bankers' acceptances, commercial paper, certificates of participation,
repurchase agreements, qualified local government investment pool, money
market funds, qualified corporate or bank debt, and certain guaranteed investment
contracts. The Town held no such investments at December 31, 2020.
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NOTE 2: CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
B. Investments (Continued)

Local Government Investment Pool - At December 31, 2020, the Town had
$2,513,620 (fair value) invested in COLOTRUST, an investment vehicle
established by State statute for local government entities in Colorado to pool
surplus funds. The State Securities Commissioner administers and enforces the
requirements of creating and operating COLOTRUST. COLOTRUST operates
similar to money market funds and each share is equal in value to $1.00.
COLOTRUST is rated AAAm by Standard and Poor's. Investments are limited to
those allowed by State statutes. A designated custodial bank provides safekeeping
and depository services in connection with the direct investment and withdrawal
functions. The custodian's internal records identify the investments owned by the
participating governments.
The Town had the following investments at December 31, 2020:
Investment Type
U.S. Treasury Securities
U.S. Government Bonds
Colotrust

Rating
Aaa by Moody
Aaa by Moody
AAAm by S & P

Total

Fair Value
$

499,530
2,215,314
2,482,533

$

5,197,377

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an
investment will not fulfill its obligations. To minimize credit risk the Town requires
that U.S. Agency Securities have the highest possible rating. Colorado statutes
establish standards for local government investment pools and the Town requires
the investment pool to maintain the highest possible rating.
Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Investments held for longer
periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest rate changes. State
statute limits investments in U.S. Agency Securities to a maximum five-year
maturity. The Town seeks to minimize interest rate risk by:
• Structuring investments to meet ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the
need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity, and
• Structuring investments to have staggered maturities of less than five years.
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NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
B. Investments (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk - For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the
event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the Town will not be able
to recover the value of the investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. In accordance with Town policy, custodial risk is
minimized by pre-qualifying custodial institutions, diversifying the investment
portfolio, and maintaining quality standards for investments. At December 31, the
Town held no investments with custodial institutions other than COLOTRUST.
Concentration of Credit Risk - State statutes generally do not limit the amount the
Town may invest in one issuer, However, the Town's investment policy require
diversification of investments, including limiting the concentration of investments
in one issuer. At December 31, 2020, the Town's investments account for 40% of
total deposits and investments.
NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Assets held for other government
Total capital assets not being depreciated

$ 1,028,709
135,497
535,718
1,699,924

Increases

$

191,941
191,941

Decreases

$

Ending
Balance

44,256
44,256

$ 1,028,709
283,182
535,718
1,847,609

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements & infrastructure
Buildings
Furniture & fixtures
Machinery, vehicles, & equipment
Developer contributed infrastructure
Intangibles
Total capital assets being depreciated

8,543,616
1,515,598
22,042
3,081,955
1,211,270
3,000
14,377,481

90,389
254,581
344,970

37,293
37,293

8,634,005
1,515,598
22,042
3,299,243
1,211,270
3,000
14,685,158

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements & infrastructure
Buildings
Furniture & fixtures
Machinery, vehicles, & equipment
Developer contributed infrastructure
Intangibles
Total accumulated depreciation

(3,221,943)
(1,021,022)
(8,269)
(2,345,833)
(670,811)
(1,000)
(7,268,878)

(489,582)
(45,205)
(3,422)
(164,121)
(62,564)
(600)
(765,494)

(37,293)
(37,293)

(3,711,525)
(1,066,227)
(11,691)
(2,472,661)
(733,375)
(1,600)
(7,997,079)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

7,108,603
$ 8,808,527

23

(420,523)
$ (228,582)

$

44,256

6,688,080
$ 8,535,689
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the Town as follows:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Total

$ 430,236
114,641
27,486
193,131
$ 765,494

Business-Type capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance

Increases

Ending
Balance

Decreases

Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and water rights
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

$ 1,136,312
26,207
1,162,519

$

54,575
54,575

$

55,597
55,597

$

1,136,312
25,185
1,161,497

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and treatment plant
Distribution systems
Storage tanks
Vehicles and equipment
Airport infrastructure
Land improvements
Southard Ground Lease buyout
Office furniture and fixtures
Total capital assets being depreciated

3,116,566
6,120,401
2,755,314
1,482,404
2,100,854
4,094,075
110,000
61,443
18,145,049

55,597
8,299
143,526
7,500
382,252
597,174

-

3,172,163
6,128,700
2,898,840
1,489,904
2,483,107
4,094,075
110,000
61,443
20,438,232

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and treatment plant
Distribution systems
Storage tanks
Vehicles and equipment
Airport infrastructure
Land improvements
Southard Ground Lease buyout
Office furniture and fixtures

(1,435,626)
(2,480,781)
(819,792)
(1,202,341)
(1,824,839)
(3,719,555)
(23,833)
(61,443)

(125,986)
(134,618)
(31,502)
(53,316)
(42,074)
(51,595)
(22,000)
-

-

(1,561,612)
(2,615,399)
(851,294)
(1,255,657)
(1,866,913)
(3,771,150)
(45,833)
(61,443)

Total accumulated depreciation

(11,568,210)

(461,091)

-

(12,029,301)

6,576,839

136,084

-

8,408,931

190,659

$ 55,597

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net

$ 7,739,358

24

$

$

9,570,428
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NOTE 4: INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS
Transfers for 2020 were as follows:
Transfers Out
$ 319,440
61,000
$ 380,440

General
Airport
Conservation Trust
Capital Improvement

Transfers In
$
40,000
340,440
$ 380,440

Transfers are used to move unrestricted General Fund revenues to finance various
programs that the government must account for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds
for various grant programs.
NOTE 5: LONG-TERM DEBT
Governmental Activities The following summarizes the changes in the Town's
governmental long-term debt activities for the year ended December 31, 2020:
Balance

Balance

January 1,

December 31,

Due Within

2020

One Year

2020

Issued

Retired

Governmental Activities
2012 Sales tax revenue bonds

$ 2,340,000

Compensated absences

$

75,753

Total Governmental Activities

$ 2,415,753

$

-

$ 100,000

87,089

95,371

87,089

$ 195,371

$

2,240,000

$

67,471
$

2,307,471

105,000
-

$

105,000

Issue: 2012 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds - Capital Improvements Fund
Original Amount: $3,000,000
Interest: 2.0%
Purpose: to design, construct and install street improvements within the Town.
Payment

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2037

Principal

$

105,000
105,000
110,000
110,000
115,000
630,000
730,000
335,000
$ 2,240,000

Interest

$

$

72,475
69,850
67,225
64,475
61,175
251,100
143,813
18,937
749,050

25

Total

$

177,475
174,850
177,225
174,475
176,175
881,100
873,813
353,937
$ 2,989,050

Balance
December 31

$

2,135,000
2,030,000
1,920,000
1,810,000
1,695,000
1,065,000
335,000
-
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Business-type Activities - The following summarizes the changes in the Town's
business-type long-term debt activities for the year ended December 31, 2020:
Balance

Balance

January 1,

December 31,

Due Within

2020

One Year

2020

Issued

Retired

Business-Type Activities
2018 CWRPDA Loan

$ 1,929,874

Compensated absences

$

-

25,258

Total Business-Type Activities

$ 1,955,132

$

26,036
$

645,889

$

1,283,985

22,231

26,036

$

668,120

$

29,063
$

1,313,048

65,446
-

$

65,446

2018 Issue: Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority
(CWRPDA) Loan
On July 11, 2018, the Town entered into a $1,983,370 loan agreement with
CWRPDA, for 20 years at an interest rate of 1% for installing redundant raw water
supply treatment, adding water storage and tank construction, and making
improvements to the water distribution system. On September 28, 2020, the Town
returned $569,114 of excess loan proceeds. With the corresponding balance
reduction, CWRPDA changed the repayment schedule to payments of $39,061
principal and interest, made twice per year until November 1, 2038.
Principal

Payment

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

$

2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2038

$

65,446
66,102
66,765
67,434
68,110
350,931
368,877
230,320
1,283,985

Interest

$

$

12,677
12,021
11,358
10,689
10,013
39,683
21,736
4,047
122,222

26

Total

$

$

78,123
78,123
78,123
78,123
78,123
390,613
390,613
234,368
1,406,207

Balance
December 31

$

1,218,539
1,152,437
1,085,672
1,018,238
950,128
599,198
230,320
-
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NOTE 6: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS
A. General Employees Retirement Plan - Section 401(a) Plan
For all regular full-time employees, other than police officers, the Town contributes
to a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined contribution pension plan (the
Retirement Plan). The Retirement Plan, which is administered by Colorado County
Officials and Employees Retirement Association (CCOERA), offers employees
who have been with the Town for six months and that work at least 32 hours per
week every month of the year, the opportunity to build retirement savings by pretax contributions of 3% of salary, which are matched with Town contributions.
Employee contributions to the Pension Plan become immediately vested. Town
contributions are vested at an annual rate of 25%. Town contributions become fully
vested after four years. The contribution requirements of Retirement Plan
participants and the Town are established, and may be amended, by the Board of
Trustees. Unvested employer contributions are returned to the Town when an
employee terminates employment and cashes out of the Retirement Plan. The
amounts returned are recognized on the financial statements as revenue in the
year received.
For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Town contributed $101,910 to the
Retirement Plan on behalf of participating employees. Participants of the
Retirement Plan made equal matching contributions in 2020. No unvested
contributions were returned to the Town in 2020.
CCOERA is also the Trustee of the Retirement Plan and, accordingly, the Town
has no liability for losses under the plan. Consequently, the Retirement Plan is not
part of the Town's financial statements.
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NOTE 6: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)
B. Deferred Compensation Plan
All employees are eligible to participate in a deferred compensation plan that was
created in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code section 457 (the Deferred
Compensation Plan). The Deferred Compensation Plan, which is administered by
CCOERA, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
All compensation deferred under the Deferred Compensation Plan, all property
and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those
amounts, property, or fights are to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the
participants and their beneficiaries. Compensation deferred under the Deferred
Compensation Plan is not available to employees until termination, retirement,
death, or unforeseeable emergency.
Participants may elect to defer any percentage of their annual compensation,
provided that the total annual contribution does not exceed limitations established
by the Internal Revenue Service. The Town does not contribute to the Deferred
Compensation Plan.
The individual participants determine investment decisions within the Deferred
Compensation Plan and, therefore, the Deferred Compensation Plan's investment
concentration varies between participants.
CCOERA is also the Trustee of the Deferred Compensation Plan and, accordingly,
the Town has no liability for losses under the plan. Consequently, the Deferred
Compensation Plan is not part of the Town's financial statements.
C. FPPA Statewide Defined Benefit Plan
Plan Description The Statewide Defined Benefit Plan (SWDB) is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The plan is administered by the
Fire & Police Pension Association of Colorado (FPPA). FPPA issues a publicly
available comprehensive annual financial report that can be obtained on FPPA's
website at http://www.fppaco.org.
Description of Benefits A member is eligible for a normal retirement pension once
the member has completed twenty-five years of credited service and has attained
the age of 55.
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NOTE 6: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)
The annual normal retirement benefit is 2 percent of the average of the member's
highest three years' base salary for each year of credited service up to ten years,
plus 2.5 percent for each year of service thereafter. The benefit earned prior to
January 1, 2007 for members of affiliated Social Security employers will be
reduced by the amount of Social Security income payable to the member annually.
Effective January 1, 2007, members currently covered under Social Security will
receive half the benefit when compared to the Statewide Defined Benefit Plan.
Benefits paid to retired members are evaluated and may be re-determined every
October 1.The amount of any increase is based on the Board's discretion and can
range from 0 to the higher of 3 percent or the Consumer Price Index.
A member is eligible for an early retirement at age 50 or after 30 years of service.
The early retirement benefit equals the normal retirement benefit reduced on an
actuarially equivalent basis. Upon termination, an employee may elect to have
member contributions, along with 5 percent as interest, returned as a lump sum
distribution. Alternatively, a member with at least five years of accredited service
may leave contributions with the Plan and remain eligible for a retirement pension
at age 55 equal to 2 percent of the member's average highest three years' base
salary for each year of credited service up to ten years, plus 2.5 percent for each
year of service thereafter.
Contributions. The Plan sets contribution rates at a level that enables all benefits
to be fully funded at the retirement date of all members. Contribution rates for the
SWDB plan are set by state statute. Employer contribution rates can only be
amended by state statute. Member contribution rates can be amended by state
statute or election of the membership.
Members of the SWDB plan and their employers are contributing at the rate of 8
percent of base salary for a total contribution rate of 16 percent through 2014. In
2014, the members elected to increase the member contribution rate to the SWDB
plan beginning in 2015. Member contribution rates will increase 0.5 percent
annually through 2022 to a total of 12 percent of base salary. Employer
contributions will remain at 8 percent resulting in a combined contribution rate of 20
percent in 2022.
Contributions from members and employers of departments re-entering the system
are established by resolution and approved by the FPPA Board of Directors. The
re-entry group has a combined contribution rate of 20 percent of base salary
through 2014. It is a local decision as to whether the member or employer pays the
additional 4 percent contribution. Per the 2014 member election, the re-entry group
will also have their required member contribution rate increase 0.5 percent
annually beginning in 2015 through 2022 for a total combined member and
employer contribution rate of 24 percent in 2022.
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NOTE 6: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)
The contribution rate for members and employers of affiliated social security
employers is 4 percent of base salary for a total contribution rate of 8 percent
through 2014. Per the 2014 member election, members of the affiliate social
security group will have their required contribution rate increase 0.25 percent
annually beginning in 2015 through 2022 to a total of 6 percent of base salary.
Employer contributions will remain at 4 percent resulting in a combined contribution
rate of 10 percent in 2022.
Net Pension Asset. At measurement date of December 31, 2019 the Town
reported an asset of $41,913 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability/(asset). The net pension liability/(asset) was measured as of December 31,
2019, and the total pension liability/(asset) used to calculate the net pension
liability/(asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2017.
The Town proportion of the net pension liability/(asset) was based on Town
contributions to the Plan for the calendar year 2019 relative to the total
contributions of participating employers to the Plan.
At December 31, 2019, the Town proportion was 0.074108%, as compared to
0.077289% at December 31, 2018.
For the plan year ended December 31, 2019, the Town recognized pension
expense of $36,939, consisting of the following elements:

Town's Proportionate Share of Collective Pension Expense for the Plan Year Ended
December 31, 2019
Service Cost
$
82,399
Interest on the Total Pension Liability
138,259
Current-Period Benefit Changes
IRC 414(h)(2) Employer-paid Member Contributions
(56,713)
Member Purchases of Service Credit
(26,558)
Projected Earnings on Plan Investments
(133,160)
Pension Plan Administrative Expense
2,612
Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Recognition of Inflow of Resources due to Liabilities
30,673
Recognition of Outflow of Resources due to Assets
(573)
Total Pension Plan Expense
$
36,939
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At December 31, 2019, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Differences between expected and actual
experience
$
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments
Changes in proportion and differences between
Town contributions and proportionate share of
contributions
Town contributions subsequent to the measurement
date
Total
$

141,840 $
15,423

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
-

45,872

14,978
43,696
261,809 $

-

Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date of December 31, 2019 of
$43,696 which are reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions,
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
December 31, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:
Year ending December 31,
2020 $
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter
$

14,714
9,008
30,442
1,899
30,755
67,158
153,976
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NOTE 6: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions. The January 1, 2020 actuarial valuation was used to
determine the Actuarially Determined Contribution for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2019. The valuation used the following actuarial assumption and
other inputs:
Actuarial Method
Amortization Method
Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Long-term Investment Rate of Return*
Projected Salary Increases
Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA)
*Includes Inflation at

Entry Age Normal
Level % of Payroll, Open
30 Years
5-Year Smoothed Fair Value
7.0%
4.25% - 11.25%
0.0%
2.5%

The RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment, projected
with Scale AA, 40 percent multiplier for off-duty mortality is used in the valuation for
off-duty mortality of active members. On-duty related mortality is assumed to be
0.00020 per year for all members. The RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table with
Blue Collar Adjustment, projected with Scale AA is used in the projection of postretirement benefits.
At least every five years the Fire & Police Pension Association's Board of
Directors, in accordance with best practices, reviews its economic and
demographic actuarial assumptions. At its July 2011 meeting, the Board of
Directors reviewed and approved recommended changes to the actuarial
assumptions. The recommendations were made by the Fire & Police Pension
Association's actuaries, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Co., based upon their analysis of
past experience and expectations of the future.
The assumption changes were effective for actuarial valuations beginning January
1, 2012. The actuarial assumptions impacted actuarial factors for benefit purposes
such as purchases of service credit and other benefits where actuarial factors are
used. The date the new actuarial assumptions were effective for benefit purposes
was October 1, 2012.
Effective with the January 1, 2013 valuations, the Board adopted a five-year
smoothing methodology in the determination of the actuarial value of assets.
Beginning in the January 1, 2014 valuations, the married assumption for active
members was increased from 80% to 85% to reflect the passage of the Colorado
Civil Union Act.
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NOTE 6: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real
rates of return for each major asset class included in the Fund's target asset
allocation as of December 31, 2017 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class
Global Equity
Equity Long/Short
Illiquid Alternatives
Fixed Income
Absolute Return
Managed Futures
Cash
Total

Target Allocation
38.00%
8.00%
25.00%
15.00%
8.00%
4.00%
2.00%
100.0%

Long-Term
Expected Rate of
Return
7.00%
6.00%
9.20%
5.20%
5.20%
5.00%
2.52%

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from participating employers will be made based on the actuarially
determined rates based on the Board's funding policy, which establishes the
contractually required rates under Colorado statutes. Based on those
assumptions, the SWDB plan fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make all the projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
Discount Rate. Projected benefit payments are required to be discounted to their
actuarial present values using a Single Discount Rate that reflects (1) a long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments (to the extent that the plan's
fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits) and (2) taxexempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation
bonds with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement date (to the extent
that the plan's projected fiduciary net position is not sufficient to pay benefits).
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For the purpose of this valuation, the expected rate of return on pension plan
investments is 7.50%; the municipal bond rate is 3.65% (based on the weekly
rate closest to but not later than the measurement date of the "state & local
bonds" rate from Federal Reserve statistical release (H.15)); and the resulting
Single Discount Rate is 7.50%.
Regarding the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the Single
Discount Rate, the following presents the plan's net pension liability, calculated
using a Single Discount Rate of 7.50%, as well as what the plan's net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a Single Discount Rate that is one
percent lower or one percent higher:

1% Decrease 6.00%
Town's Proportionate
Share

$

Single Discount Rate
Assumption 7.00%

254,126 $

1% Increase 8.00%

(41,913) $

(287,438)

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary
net position is available in FPPA’s comprehensive annual financial report which
can be obtained at http://www.fppaco.org.
D. FPPA Statewide Hybrid Plan - Defined Benefit Component
Plan Description. The Statewide Hybrid Plan (SWH) is a cost-sharing multipleemployer defined benefit pension plan. The SWH is comprised of two components:
Defined Benefit and Money Purchase. The plan is administered by the Fire &
Police Pension Association of Colorado (FPPA). FPPA issues a publicly available
comprehensive annual financial report can be obtained on FPPA's website at
http://www.fppaco.org.
Description of Benefits. The Plan document states that any member may retire
from further service and become eligible for a normal retirement pension at any
time after age 55, if the member has at least 25 years of service.
The annual normal pension of the Defined Benefit Component is 1.5 percent of the
average of the member's highest three years' base salary for each year of credited
service. Benefits paid to retired members of the Defined Benefit Component are
evaluated and may be re-determined annually on October 1. The amount of any
increase is based on the Board's discretion and can range from 0 to 3 percent.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)
D. FPPA Statewide Hybrid Plan - Defined Benefit Component (Continued)
A member is eligible for early retirement at age 50 or after of 30 years of service.
The early retirement benefit equals the normal retirement benefit reduced on an
actuarially equivalent basis. Upon termination, a member may elect to have all
contributions, along with 5 percent as interest, returned as a lump sum distribution
from the Defined Benefit Component. Alternatively, a member with at least five
years of accredited service may leave contributions with the Defined Benefit
Component of the Plan and remain eligible fora retirement pension at age 55 equal
to 1.5 percent of the average of the member's highest three years' base salary for
each year of credited service.
Contributions. The Plan sets contribution rates at a level that enables all benefits
to be fully funded at the retirement date of all members. The members of the SWH
plan and their employers are currently each contributing at the rate determined by
the individual employer, however, the rate for both employer and members must
be at least 8 percent of the member's base salary. The amount allocated to the
Defined Benefit Component is set annually by the Fire & Police Pension
Association Board of Directors. Excess contributions fund the Money Purchase
Component of the Plan. The Defined Benefit Component contribution rate from
July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 is 12.5 percent. The Defined Benefit
Component contribution rate from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 was 12.6
percent.
Within the Money Purchase Component, members are always fully vested in their
own contributions, as well as the earnings on those contributions. Vesting in the
employer's contributions within the Money Purchase Component, and earnings on
those contributions occurs according to the vesting schedule set by the plan
document at 20 percent per year after the first year of service to be 100 percent
vested after 5 years of service. Employer and member contributions are invested
in funds at the discretion of members.
Net Pension Asset. At plan year end December 31, 2019 the Town reported an
asset of $55,723 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. (The Town
reported an asset rather than a liability because the Plan’s fiduciary net position
currently exceeds the total pension liability.) The net pension liability was
measured as of December 31, 2019, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
January 1, 2020. The Town proportion of the net pension liability was based on
Town contributions to the plan for the calendar year 2017 relative to the total
contributions of participating employers to the Plan.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)
D. FPPA Statewide Hybrid Plan - Defined Benefit Component (Continued)
For the plan year ended December 31, 2019, the Town recognized pension
expense of $3,976, consisting of the following elements:

Town's Proportionate Share of Collective Pension Expense for the Plan Year Ended
December 31, 2018
Service Cost
$
12,288
Interest on the Total Pension Liability
31,812
Current-Period Benefit Changes
4,202
IRC 414(h)(2) Employer-paid Member Contributions
(5,671)
Projected Earnings on Plan Investments
(43,631)
Pension Plan Administrative Expense
726
Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position
(23,184)
Recognition of Outflow of Resources due to Liabilities
18,657
Recognition of Outflow of Resources due to Assets
8,777
Total Pension Plan Expense
$
3,976

At December 31, 2019, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Differences between expected and actual
experience
$
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments
Changes in proportion and differences
between Town contributions and proportionate
share of contributions
Town contributions subsequent to the
measurement date
Total
$
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Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

79,232 $
16,398

-

24,132

-

-

-

13,005
132,767 $

-
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)
D. FPPA Statewide Hybrid Plan - Defined Benefit Component (Continued)
Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date of December 31, 2019 of
$13,005 which are reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions,
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
December 31, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:
P13 - other amounts reported as deferred outflows:

Year ending December 31,
2020 $
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter
$

16,600
14,980
21,349
9,721
7,205
1,068
70,923

Actuarial Assumptions. The January 1, 2020 actuarial valuation was used to
determine the Actuarially Determined Contribution for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2019. The valuation used the following actuarial assumption and
other inputs:
Actuarial Method
Amortization Method
Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Long-term Investment Rate of Return*
Projected Salary Increases
Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA)
*Includes Inflation at

Entry Age Normal
Level % of Payroll, Open
30 Years
5-Year Smoothed Fair Value
7.5%
4.0% - 14.0%
0.0%
2.5%

The RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment, projected
with Scale AA, 40 percent multiplier for off-duty mortality is used in the valuation
for off-duty mortality of active members. On-duty related mortality is assumed to
be 0.00020 per year for all members. The RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table
with Blue Collar Adjustment, projected with Scale AA is used in the projection of
post-retirement benefits.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)
D. FPPA Statewide Hybrid Plan - Defined Benefit Component (Continued)
At least every five years the Fire & Police Pension Association's Board of
Directors, in accordance with best practices, reviews its economic and
demographic actuarial assumptions. At its July 2011 meeting, the Board of
Directors reviewed and approved recommended changes to the actuarial
assumptions. The recommendations were made by the Fire & Police Pension
Association's actuaries, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Co., based upon their analysis of
past experience and expectations of the future.
The assumption changes were effective for actuarial valuations beginning January
1, 2012. The actuarial assumptions impacted actuarial factors for benefit purposes
such as purchases of service credit and other benefits where actuarial factors are
used. The date the new actuarial assumptions were effective for benefit purposes
was October 1, 2012.
Effective with the January 1, 2013 valuations, the Board adopted a five-year
smoothing methodology in the determination of the actuarial value of assets.
Beginning in the January 1, 2014 valuations, the married assumption for active
members was increased from 80% to 85% to reflect the passage of the Colorado
Civil Union Act.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real
rates of return for each major asset class included in the Fund's target asset
allocation as of December 31, 2015 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class
Global Equity
Equity Long/Short
Illiquid Alternatives
Fixed Income
Absolute Return
Managed Futures
Cash
Total

Target Allocation
38.0%
8.0%
25.0%
15.0%
8.0%
4.0%
2.0%
100.0%

38

Long-Term
Expected Rate of
Return
7.00%
6.00%
9.20%
5.20%
5.20%
5.00%
2.52%
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D. FPPA Statewide Hybrid Plan - Defined Benefit Component (Continued)
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from participating employers will be made based on the actuarially
determined rates based on the Board's funding policy, which establishes the
contractually required rates under Colorado statutes. Based on those assumptions,
the SWH·Defined Benefit Component fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all the projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.
Discount Rate. Projected benefit payments are required to be discounted to their
actuarial present values using a Single Discount Rate that reflects (1) a long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments (to the extent that the plan's
fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits) and (2) taxexempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds
with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement date (to the extent that the
plan's projected fiduciary net position is not sufficient to pay benefits).
For the purpose of this valuation, the expected rate of return on pension plan
investments is 7.50%; the municipal bond rate is 3.65% (based on the weekly rate
closest to but not later than the measurement date of the "state & local bonds" rate
from Federal Reserve statistical release (H.15)); and the resulting Single Discount
Rate is 7.50%.
Regarding the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the Single
Discount Rate, the following presents the plan's net pension liability, calculated
using a Single Discount Rate of 7.50%,as well as what the plan's net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a Single Discount Rate that is one
percent lower or one percent higher:

1% Decrease 6.00%
Town's Proportionate
Share

$

Single Discount Rate
Assumption 7.00%

(98,825) $

1% Increase 8.00%

(162,484) $

(215,740)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the Plan’s
fiduciary net position is available in FPPA’s comprehensive annual financial report
which can be obtained at http://www.fppaco.org.
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E. FPPA Buena Vista Volunteer Fire Pension Plan - Defined Benefit Component
Plan Description. The Buena Vista Volunteer Fire Pension Plan is an agent
multiple-employer Public Employee Retirement System (PERS). The PERS
represents the assets of numerous separate plans that have been pooled for
investment purposes. The pension plans have elected to affiliate with FPPA for
plan administration and investment only. FPPA issues a publicly available
comprehensive annual financial report can be obtained on FPPA's website at
http://www.fppaco.org.
Description of Benefits. The Plan, as established and amended by the Plan's
Board of Trustees through the Bylaws, provides for a monthly pension of $250 for
volunteers who have satisfied the normal age and service requirements and pro
rata pensions for volunteers who have satisfied the normal age but only a portion
of the service requirement. It further provides death benefits and a partial pension
(50% of the amount the volunteer has earned) for surviving spouses. The normal
age and service requirement is the date a volunteer reaches 50 years of age and
completes 20 years of service. Pro-rata pensions would apply to volunteers who
reached 50 years of age and had between 10 and 20 years of service. A one-time
$100 funeral benefit lump sum is also provided.
Membership. The number and classes of employees covered are shown below:
Actuarial
Valuation as of
January 1, 2019
Number of:
Retirees and Beneficiaries
Inactive, Nonretired Members
Active Members

14
2
9
25
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NOTE 6: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)
E. FPPA Buena Vista Volunteer Fire Pension Plan - Defined Benefit Component
(Continued)
Changes in the Net Pension Liability/(Asset). Sources of the changes in the net
pension liability/(asset) for the measurement period ended December 31, 2019 is
shown below:

Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Benefit changes
Difference between expected and actual
experience of the Total Pension Liability
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments
Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending

Measurement
Period Ended
December 31, 2019
$
4,431
31,713
-

$

(30,900)
5,244
466,049
471,293

Actuarial Assumptions. The January 1, 2020 actuarial valuation was used to
determine the net pension liability/(asset) for the fiscal year ending December 31,
2019. The valuation used the following actuarial assumption and other inputs:
Actuarial Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Long-term Investment Rate of Return*
Projected Salary Increases
Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA)
*Includes Inflation at
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Entry Age
Level dollar - open
20 years
5-Year Smoothed Fair Value
7.5%
N/A
None
2.5%
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NOTE 6: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)
E. FPPA Buena Vista Volunteer Fire Pension Plan - Defined Benefit Component
(Continued)
Inputs to the Single Discount Rate. Projected benefit payments are required to be
discounted to their actuarial present values using a Single Discount Rate that
reflects ( 1) a long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (to
the extent that the plan's fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay
benefits) and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year
general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement
date (to the extent that the plan's projected fiduciary net position is not sufficient to
pay benefits).
For the purpose of this valuation, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments is 7.50%; the municipal bond rate is 3.65% {based on the weekly
rate closest to but not later than the measurement date of the "state & local bonds"
rate from Federal Reserve statistical release (H.15)); and the resulting Single
Discount Rate is 7.50%.
Projected cash flows used in determining the Single Discount Rate are available
upon request.
Other Assumptions and Changes for the January 1, 2017 Actuarial Valuation. The
RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment, projected with
Scale AA, 40 percent multiplier for off-duty mortality is used in the valuation for preretirement mortality. The RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar
Adjustment, projected with Scale AA is used in the projection of post-retirement
mortality.
Marital status is assumed to be 90% male and female with males assumed to be
three years older than females. There were no changes in actuarial assumptions
nor changes in actuarial methods from the January 1, 2014 actuarial valuation.
Contributions and Funding. Participating volunteer firefighters do not contribute to
the pension plan. Contributions to the Plan are made by the Town and through a
90% matching grant from the State of Colorado. The contribution requirements of
the Plan are established under Title 31, Article 30 of the Colorado Revised
Statutes, as amended. The Town contributed $37,387 to the Plan for the year
ended December 31, 2019.
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NOTE 6: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)
E. FPPA Buena Vista Volunteer Fire Pension Plan - Defined Benefit Component
(Continued)
Summary of Plan Information:
summarized below:

Additional information related to the Plan is

Total Pension Liability
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Measurement
Period Ended
December 31,
2019
$
471,293
520,648
$
(49,355)

Plan fiduciary net position as a
Total Pension Expense/(Income)

$

110.47%
(21,199)

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Source to be recognized
in Future Pension Expense/(Income)
Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of
Resources
Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experience
$
- $
48,196
Changes of assumptions
10,616
Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on pension plan
investments
19,192
Town contributions subsequent to the
measurement date
Total
$
29,808 $
48,196
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NOTE 6: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS (Continued)
E. FPPA Buena Vista Volunteer Fire Pension Plan - Defined Benefit Component
(Continued)
Regarding the sensitivity of the net pension liability/(asset) to changes in the
Single Discount Rate, the following presents the plan's net pension liability,
calculated using a Single Discount Rate of 7.50%,as well as what the plan's net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a Single Discount Rate that is
one percent lower or one percent higher:

1% Decrease 6.0%
$

Single Discount Rate
Assumption 7.0% 1% Increase 8.0%

(1,945) $

(49,355) $

(89,264)

F. Death And Disability Benefits
Death and disability coverage is provided to full-time police officers through the
Statewide Death and Disability Plan, which is administered by the FPPA. During
the past year, the Town's required contribution rate was 2.6% of base salary for
members. Town contributions to this plan totaled $12,000 during 2020, with State
supplemental contribution of $10,800. Employees are not required to contribute to
this plan.
NOTE 7: STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
TABOR Amendment
In November 1992, Colorado voters amended Article X of the Colorado Constitution
by adding Section 20; commonly known as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights (TABOR).
TABOR contains revenue, spending, tax and debt limitations that apply to the State
of Colorado and local governments. TABOR requires, with certain exceptions,
advance voter approval for any new tax, tax rate increase, mill levy above that for the
prior year, extension of any expiring tax, or tax policy change directly causing a net
tax revenue gain to any local government. Any revenues earned in excess of the
fiscal year spending limit must be refunded in the next fiscal year, unless voters
approve retention of such excess revenue.
Except for refinancing bonded debt at a lower interest rate or adding new employees
to existing pension plans, TABOR requires advance voter approval for the creation of
any multiple-fiscal year debt or other financial obligation unless adequate present
cash reserves are pledged irrevocably and held for payments in all future fiscal
years.
44

TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2020

94

NOTE 7: STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)
TABOR Amendment (Continued)
TABOR also requires local governments to establish an emergency reserve to be
used to declare emergencies only. Emergencies, as defined by TABOR, exclude
economic conditions, revenue shortfalls, or salary or fringe benefit increases. The
reserve is calculated at 3% of fiscal year spending. Fiscal year spending excludes
bonded debt service and enterprise spending. The Town has reserved $171,700,
which is the approximate required reserve at December 31, 2020.
The Town's voters approved the following ballot issue on November 6, 2001:
Excluding ad valorem property taxes and rates, and without creating any new taxes,
increasing any tax rate, or adding any new taxes of any kind, shall the Town of
Buena Vista, Colorado, be permitted to collect, retain, and spend, for the fiscal year
of 2001 and for each and every year thereafter, the full proceeds of the Town's taxes,
grants and other revenues for expenditure on lawful municipal purposes,
notwithstanding any State of Colorado restrictions on spending including the
restrictions of Article X, Section 20 of the Constitution of the State of Colorado, and
that these shall each constitute a voter approval revenue change?
The Town's management believes it is in compliance with the financial provisions of
TABOR. However, TABOR is complex and subject to interpretation. Many of its
provisions, including the interpretation of how to calculate fiscal year spending limits,
will require judicial interpretation.
NOTE 8: RISK MANAGEMENT
The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to workers compensation and
general liability. The Town has acquired commercial coverage for these risks and any
settled claims are not expected to exceed the commercial insurance coverage.
The Town is also exposed to the risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions. To address such risks, the Town is a
participant in the public entity risk pool administered by Colorado Intergovernmental
Risk Sharing Agency (CIRSA).
CIRSA's operations are funded by contributions from member governments.
Coverage is provided in the amount of $500,000 per claim or occurrence for property
damage, $600,000 per claim or occurrence for liability, and $150,000 per claim or
occurrence for crime. CIRSA has also acquired additional excess coverage from
outside sources. While the Town may be liable for any losses in excess of this
coverage, the Town does not anticipate losses at December 31, 2020. No
settlements of claims against the Town in the last three years have exceeded the
Town's coverage.
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NOTE 8: RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Surpluses or deficits realized by CIRSA for any given year are subject to change for
such reasons as interest earnings on invested amounts for those years and funds, reestimation of losses for those years and funds, and credits or distributions from
surplus for those years and funds. All income and assets of CIRSA shall be at all
times dedicated to the exclusive benefit of its members. The board of directors may
credit member municipalities' future contributions in the event of a surplus. Although
it has never occurred, CIRSA member municipalities are subject to a supplemental
assessment in the event of a deficiency.
For 2020, the Town's deductible for property and liability claims per occurrence is
$1,000 for each. The auto liability deductible and the auto physical damage
deductible are both $1,000 per occurrence.
The Town carries no deductible for workers Compensation coverage. CIRSA's
coverage for workers' compensation claims are the Colorado statutory limits of
$500,000 per occurrence and $1,000,000 for employer liability.
The Town also carries accident medical insurance coverage for volunteers through
CIRSA. This provides a medical coverage for a minor injury a volunteer receives
when serving the Town in a volunteer capacity such as a community service worker,
volunteer trail work, or volunteer coaching for recreation. Coverage is $15,000 per
occurrence with a $25 deductible.
NOTE 9:

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A. Legal Claims
The Town may be a defendant in lawsuits pertaining to matters which are
incidental to performing routine governmental and other functions. Based on the
current status of any legal proceedings, it is the opinion of management that they
will not have a material effect on the Town's financial position.
B. Federal and State Grants and Financial Sources
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Such audits
could lead to reimbursements to the grantor agencies. It is the opinion of
management that such reimbursements, if any, will not have a material effect on
the Town's financial position.
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019
2020
ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

$ 443,905
55,747
84,000
3,413,950
17,591
9,450
4,024,643

$ 443,905
55,747
84,000
3,681,698
17,591
9,450
4,292,391

441,203
50,253
79,461
3,898,574
26,820
9,649
4,505,960

Charges for Services:
Business licenses
Building and development fees
Other permits and fees
Recreation fees and permits
Fines
Cemetery fees
Lease income
Total Charges for Services

21,275
32,850
38,010
111,920
42,970
6,350
400
253,775

21,275
32,850
38,010
111,920
42,970
6,350
400
253,775

Intergovernmental:
Highway users tax
County road and bridge tax
Grants
Motor vehicle registration
Total Intergovernmental

145,000
4,500
70,500
15,000
235,000

REVENUES
Taxes:
General property
Specific ownership
Franchise fees
General sales
Mineral severance
Cigarette
Total Taxes

Other Revenues
Contributions
Earnings on investments
Other revenue
Total Other Revenues
TOTAL REVENUES

VARIANCE
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

(2,702)
(5,494)
(4,539)
216,876
9,229
199
213,569

422,928
64,022
82,072
3,374,756
17,065
8,863
3,969,706

27,093
34,976
65,053
41,734
20,753
41,140
230,749

5,818
2,126
27,043
(70,186)
(22,217)
34,790
(400)
(23,026)

33,896
44,964
43,765
110,456
38,357
5,910
277,348

145,000
4,500
485,600
15,000
650,100

102,837
5,406
1,109,738
17,593
1,235,574

(42,163)
906
624,138
2,593
585,474

149,577
4,949
448,519
15,240
618,285

2,000
30,000
5,525
37,525

2,000
30,000
5,525
37,525

9,282
20,101
38,284
67,667

7,282
(9,899)
32,759
30,142

6,994
35,470
83,311
125,775

4,550,943

5,233,791

6,039,950

(Continued)
See the accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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$

2019
ACTUAL

806,159

4,991,114
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019
2020
ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

2019
ACTUAL

EXPENDITURES
General Government:
Mayor and Board of Trustees
Town Clerk
Municipal Court
Town Administrator
Financial Administration
Town Hall Operations
Public Support
Elections
Total General Government

44,730
147,636
72,655
274,062
234,904
37,038
343,908
18,875
1,173,808

44,730
147,636
72,655
274,062
234,904
37,038
611,523
18,875
1,441,423

46,572
145,137
52,275
281,641
241,279
59,408
586,235
12,649
1,425,196

(1,842)
2,499
20,380
(7,579)
(6,375)
(22,370)
25,288
6,226
16,227

42,300
87,858
69,217
246,781
216,668
49,437
283,221
528
996,010

Public Safety:
Police
Fire
Fire deployments
Public Safety Complex
Total Public Safety

1,210,168
471,150
40,500
17,900
1,739,718

1,218,805
471,150
103,000
17,900
1,810,855

1,144,654
566,652
771,795
24,963
2,508,064

74,151
(95,502)
(668,795)
(7,063)
(697,209)

1,105,897
388,069
284,212
21,041
1,799,219

Community Services
Development
Community Center
Public Television
Total Community Services

264,740
32,043
500
297,283

264,740
32,043
500
297,283

362,027
26,071
22
388,120

(97,287)
5,972
478
(90,837)

330,369
26,914
2,340
359,623

Public Works:
Streets and Properties Maintenance and Improvements

511,162

511,162

502,483

8,679

450,673

Culture and Recreation:
Parks
Cemetery
Recreation Programs
Total Culture and Recreation

353,112
3,250
322,932
679,294

353,112
3,250
322,932
679,294

257,242
5,085
252,501
514,828

95,870
(1,835)
70,431
164,466

256,962
2,470
243,724
503,156

4,401,265

4,740,017

5,338,691

(598,674)

4,108,681

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In (Out)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year
Fund Balances - End of Year

(200,500)

(451,603)

(451,603)

(50,822)

42,171

249,656

1,404,833

562,993

2,319,931

2,319,931

2,319,931

-

1,756,938

$ 2,269,109

$ 2,362,102

$ 2,569,587

$ 1,404,833

$ 2,319,931

See the accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE CONSERVATION TRUST FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

2020
ORIGINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Lottery proceeds
Interest income
TOTAL REVENUES

$

EXPENDITURES
Park maintenance

5,000
5,000

FINAL
BUDGET
$

VARIANCE
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

ACTUAL

35,000
5,000
40,000

$

30,196
2,087
32,283

-

-

-

5,000

40,000

32,283

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in (out)

(39,000)

(39,000)

(39,000)

Net Change in Fund Balance

(34,000)

1,000

(6,717)

24,204

24,204

24,204

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year
FUND BALANCE - End of Year

$

(9,796)

$

25,204

$

17,487

See the accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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$

(4,804)
(2,913)
(7,717)

2019
ACTUAL
$

-

-

(7,717)

39,009

-

(61,000)

(7,717)

(21,991)

$

(7,717)

33,005
6,004
39,009

46,195
$

24,204
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE STREET FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

2020
ORIGINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Town Sales Tax
Development Fees
Interest income

ORIGINAL
& FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

$ 405,000
66,900
5,700

$ 504,457
-

$ 649,789
281
3,393

TOTAL REVENUES

574,600

504,457

653,463

149,006

598,634

EXPENDITURES
Street Expenses
Debt Service Principal
Debt Service Interest

5,500
20,107
63,850

310,250
100,000
76,975

270,543
100,000
76,173

39,707
802

294,353
100,000
79,371

89,457

487,225

446,716

40,509

473,724

Net Change in Fund Balance

485,143

17,232

206,747

189,515

124,910

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year

296,736

296,736

296,736

-

211,827

$ 781,879

$ 313,968

$ 503,483

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE - End of Year

See the accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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$

$

145,332
281
3,393

2019
ACTUAL

189,515

$

$

550,820
7,814

336,737
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY/(ASSET)
FIRE AND POLICE PENSION ASSOCIATION OF COLORADO - STATEWIDE DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*

Measurement period ending December 31,

Town's portion of the net pension asset

2019

2018

0.074108%

0.077289%

2017

0.053647%

2016

2015

0.058169%

0.055701%

0.046123%

0.042529%

(982)

(52,053)

(38,029)

207,419

188,097

Town's proportionate share of the net pension
liability (asset)

(41,913)

97,714

(77,180)

21,019

Town's covered payroll

546,200

517,725

313,800

297,700

2014

270,025

2013

Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll

-8%

19%

-25%

7%

0%

-25%

-20%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension asset

101.90%

95.20%

106.30%

98.21%

100.10%

106.80%

105.80%

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end that
occurred one year prior. Information is only available beginning in fiscal year 2014.

See the accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
SCHEDULE OF TOWN CONTRIBUTIONS
FIRE AND POLICE PENSION ASSOCIATION OF COLORADO - STATEWIDE DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*
Measurement period ending December 31,

Contractually required contribution

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

$ 43,696

$ 41,418

$ 25,104

$ 23,816

$ 21,602

Contributions in relation to the contractually required
contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

Town's covered payroll
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

(43,696)
$

-

546,200
8.0%

(41,418)
$

-

517,725
8.0%

(25,104)
$

-

313,800

(23,816)
$

297,700

8.0%

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end that
occurred one year prior. Information is only available beginning in fiscal year 2014.

See the accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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-

8.0%

2014

$ 16,593

(21,602)
$

-

270,025
8.0%

2013

$ 14,778

(16,593)
$

-

207,419
8.0%

(14,778)
$

-

188,097
8.0%
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY/(ASSET)
FIRE AND POLICE PENSION ASSOCIATION OF COLORADO - STATEWIDE HYBRID PLAN
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*

Measurement period ending December 31,

2019

Town's portion of the net pension asset
Town's proportionate share of the net pension
liability (asset)
Town's covered payroll

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

0.834363%

0.815985%

0.776310%

0.882542%

0.864078%

0.850630%

0.752145%

(162,484)

(112,634)

(151,790)

(96,067)

(91,012)

(100,882)

(76,720)

166,438

163,375

148,375

142,663

142,238

131,618

121,632

Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll

-98%

-69%

-102%

-67%

-64%

-77%

-63%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension asset

130.06%

123.46%

127.5%

127.5%

129.4%

140.6%

139.0%

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end that
occurred one year prior. Information is only available beginning in fiscal year 2014.

See the accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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104
TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
SCHEDULE OF TOWN CONTRIBUTIONS
FIRE AND POLICE PENSION ASSOCIATION OF COLORADO - STATEWIDE HYBRID PLAN
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*

Measurement period ending December 31,

2019

Contractually required contribution

$

Contributions in relation to the contractually required
contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

Town's covered payroll
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

13,315

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

$ 13,005

$ 11,870

$ 11,413

$ 11,379

$ 10,529

$ 9,730

(13,315)
$

-

166,438

(13,005)
$

-

163,375

8.0%

(11,870)
$

-

148,375

8.0%

8.0%

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end that
occurred one year prior. Information is only available beginning in fiscal year 2014.

See the accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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(11,413)
$

-

142,663
8.0%

(11,379)
$

-

142,238
8.0%

(10,529)
$

-

131,618
8.0%

(9,730)
$

-

121,632
8.0%
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY/(ASSET) AND RELATED RATIOS
FIRE AND POLICE PENSION ASSOCIATION OF COLORADO - BUENA VISTA VOLUNTEER
FIRE DEPARTMENT PENSION FUND
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*
Measurement period ending December 31,

2019

Total Pension Liability
Service Cost
Interest on the Total Pension Liability
Benefit Changes
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience
Assumption Changes
Benefit Payments
Net Change in Total Pension Liability
Total Pension Liabilty - Beginning
Total Pension Liabilty - Ending (a)

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

$

4,431
31,713
(30,900)
5,244
466,049
$ 471,293

$

5,906
37,602
(76,151)
16,773
(32,488)
(48,358)
514,407
$ 466,049

$

5,906
36,733
(29,663)
12,976
501,431
$ 514,407

$

4,754
37,598
(35,430)
11,921
(32,185)
(13,342)
514,773
$ 501,431

$

4,754
36,877
(31,850)
9,781
504,992
$ 514,773

$

4,453
35,425
12,571
(34,589)
17,860
487,132
$ 504,992

$

$

$

$

$

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer Contributions
Pension Plan Net Investment Income
Benefit Payments
Pension Plan Adminstrative Expense
State of Colorado supplemental discretionary payment
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)

$

12,000
65,555
(30,900)
(6,391)
10,800
51,064
469,584
$ 520,648

12,000
301
(32,488)
(6,884)
10,800
(16,271)
485,855
$ 469,584

12,000
62,018
(29,663)
(6,464)
10,800
48,691
437,164
$ 485,855

12,000
22,059
(32,185)
(934)
10,800
11,740
425,424
$ 437,164

12,000
7,660
(31,850)
(1,747)
10,800
(3,137)
428,561
$ 425,424

24,000
27,215
(34,589)
(1,011)
21,600
37,215
391,346
$ 428,561

Net Pension Liability/(Asset) - Ending (a)-(b)

$ (49,355)

$

$

$

$

$

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of Total Pension Liability

110.47%

(3,535)
100.76%

28,552

64,267

89,349

76,431

94.45%

87.18%

82.64%

84.86%

Covered Payroll

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Net Pension Liability as a % of covered payroll

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end that
occurred one year prior. Information is only available beginning in fiscal year 2014.

See the accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY/(ASSET) AND RELATED RATIOS
FIRE AND POLICE PENSION ASSOCIATION OF COLORADO - BUENA VISTA VOLUNTEER
FIRE DEPARTMENT PENSION FUND
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*

FY Ending
December
31,
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Actuarially
Determined
Contribution
$

35,901
13,043
11,734
11,734
10,422
10,422

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)

Actual
Contribution*
$

45,600
22,800
22,800
22,800
22,800
22,800

$

(9,699)
(9,757)
(11,066)
(11,066)
(12,378)
(12,378)

Covered
Payroll

Actual
Contribution
as a % of
Covered
Payroll

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end that
occurred one year prior. Information is only available beginning in fiscal year 2014.

See the accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019
2020
ORIGINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Contributions
Grants
Interest income
TOTAL REVENUES

$

23,500
940,547
15,000
979,047

FINAL
BUDGET
$

23,500
30,835
15,000
69,335

ACTUAL
$

24,995
3,000
2,413
30,408

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Office equipment/furniture

-

21,687

1,032

Public Safety
Police vehicles
Fire fighting equipment
Office equipment/furniture
Total Public Safety

106,000
7,000
106,000

159,000
200,000
7,000
366,000

Community Services
Capital outlay

-

Public Works
General
Street improvements
Total Public Works

VARIANCE
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)
$

1,495
(27,835)
(12,587)
(38,927)

2019
ACTUAL
$

4,600
271,194
10,127
285,921

20,655

15,500

164,785
200,000
7,511
372,296

(5,785)
(511)
(6,296)

53,153
227,316
14,000
294,469

-

49,385

(49,385)

40,072

-

-

204
55,150
55,354

(204)
(55,150)
(55,354)

490
47,353
47,843

11,500

11,500

100,975

(89,475)

260,901

117,500

399,187

579,042

(179,855)

658,785

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over Expenditures

861,547

(329,852)

(548,634)

140,928

(372,864)

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in

142,500

393,513

393,603

1,004,047

63,661

(155,031)

122,240

122,240

122,240

$1,126,287

$ 185,901

Culture and Recreation
Park improvements
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Net Change in Fund Balance
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year
FUND BALANCE - End of Year

$

(32,791)

See the accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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(90)
218,692

$

340,440
(32,424)

-

154,664

218,692

$ 122,240
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
WATER FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

2020

REVENUES
Water sales
Water meter sales
Finance charges
Investment income
System development fees
Other fees
Other revenues
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Salaries and benefits
Professional services
Meters, materials and freight
Insurance
Other general and administrative
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and building operations
Capital outlay
Debt principal payments
Debt interest and fiscal charges
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
CHANGE IN NET POSITION- BUDGET BASIS

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

$ 1,015,140
25,000
9,190
16,254
463,000
3,500
45,400

$ 1,015,140
25,000
9,190
16,254
463,000
3,500
45,400

$ 1,077,896
4,456
1,595
64,072
439,668
797
59,477

1,577,484

1,577,484

1,647,961

470,951
106,500
26,900
5,883
42,400
17,047
13,500
42,350
763,675
100,000
11,780

470,951
106,500
26,900
5,883
156,950
17,047
13,500
42,350
763,675
100,000
11,780

426,718
127,305
45,098
6,021
38,846
13,891
6,831
40,680
274,740
76,775
23,416

1,600,986

1,715,536

(23,502)

(138,052)

RECONCILIATION TO GAAP BASIS:
Depreciation
Capitalized assets
Debt principal payments
Total GAAP basis adjustments
CHANGE IN NET POSITION- GAAP BASIS

$

$

62,756
(20,544)
(7,595)
47,818
(23,332)
(2,703)
14,077

2019
ACTUAL

$

987,437
22,230
9,635
60,830
610,161
1,338
348,685

70,477

2,040,316

44,233
(20,805)
(18,198)
(138)
118,104
3,156
6,669
1,670
488,935
23,225
(11,636)

399,783
96,906
6,692
35,395
14,501
30,550
34,088
1,715,260
53,496
5,312

1,080,321

635,215

2,391,983

567,640

705,692

(351,667)

(212,461)
261,999
76,775

(194,661)
1,695,529
53,496

126,313

1,554,364

693,953

$ 1,202,697

See the accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
60

VARIANCE
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

2020

REVENUES
Charges for services:
Fuel sales
Rental revenue
Other fees and sales
Grant revenue
Transfers
Other taxes
TOTAL REVENUES

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

$ 405,000
66,900
19,400
395,000
97,000
5,700
989,000

$ 405,000
66,900
19,400
415,000
97,000
5,700
1,009,000

$ 235,294
47,562
11,269
395,000
97,000
6,166
792,291

$ (169,706)
(19,338)
(8,131)
(20,000)
466
(216,709)

229,450
212,626
5,500
20,107
63,850
25,640
8,000
2,000
420,889
988,062

229,450
212,626
5,500
20,107
63,850
25,640
8,000
2,000
420,889
988,062

134,933
219,201
7,191
20,055
56,322
31,402
7,025
3,214
385,249
864,592

94,517
(6,575)
(1,691)
52
7,528
(5,762)
975
(1,214)
35,640
123,470

252,755
212,316
5,226
19,036
79,742
32,717
5,675
1,486
42,367
651,320

20,938

(72,301)

(51,363)

94,851

EXPENDITURES
Fuel cost
Salaries and benefits
Professional services
Insurance
Other general and administrative
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Airport and weather station operations
Capital outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
CHANGE IN NET POSITION BUDGET BASIS

$

938

$

RECONCILIATION TO GAAP BASIS:
Depreciation
Capitalized assets
Total GAAP basis adjustments

$

2019
ACTUAL

$

(248,630)
389,752
141,122

CHANGE IN NET POSITION - GAAP BASIS

$

68,821

See the accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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385,134
230,921
46,959
35,430
40,000
7,727
746,171

(238,562)
42,091
(196,471)
$

(101,620)
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
STORM WATER ENTERPRISE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

2020

REVENUES
Charges for services:
Storm water fees

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

$

68,000

$ 68,000

$ 71,752

115,036

115,036

33,992

EXPENDITURES
Other general and administrative
CHANGE IN NET POSITION BUDGET BASIS

$ (47,036)

$ (47,036)

RECONCILIATION TO GAAP BASIS:

37,760

VARIANCE
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

$

$

3,752

2019
ACTUAL

$

81,044

560

84,796

68,724

-

CHANGE IN NET POSITION - GAAP BASIS

$ 37,760

See the accompanying Independent Auditor's Report.
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69,284

$

68,724
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STATE REQUIRED REPORT SECTION
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Financial Planning 02/01
The public report burden for this information collection is estimated to average 380 hours annually.

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT
This Information From The Records Of (example - City of _ or County of _ Prepared By:
Town of Buena Vista
Phone:

Form # 350-050-36

City or County:
Town of Buena Vista
YEAR ENDING :
December 2020
Michelle Stoke, Treasurer
719-589-1035

I. DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE
A. Local
Motor-Fuel
Taxes

ITEM
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

B.
Local
Motor-Vehicle
Taxes

C. Receipts from
State HighwayUser Taxes

D. Receipts from
Federal Highway
Administration

Total receipts available
Minus amount used for collection expenses
Minus amount used for nonhighway purposes
Minus amount used for mass transit
Remainder used for highway purposes
II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES
AMOUNT

ITEM
A. Receipts from local sources:
1. Local highway-user taxes
a. Motor Fuel (from Item I.A.5.)
b. Motor Vehicle (from Item I.B.5.)
c. Total (a.+b.)
2. General fund appropriations
3. Other local imposts (from page 2)
4. Miscellaneous local receipts (from page 2)
5. Transfers from toll facilities
6. Proceeds of sale of bonds and notes:
a. Bonds - Original Issues
b. Bonds - Refunding Issues
c. Notes
d. Total (a. + b. + c.)
7. Total (1 through 6)
B. Private Contributions
C. Receipts from State government
(from page 2)
D. Receipts from Federal Government
(from page 2)
E. Total receipts (A.7 + B + C + D)

A. Bonds (Total)
1. Bonds (Refunding Portion)
B. Notes (Total)

700,042
15,735

0
715,777

125,836
0
841,613

III. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD
AND STREET PURPOSES
ITEM
AMOUNT
A. Local highway disbursements:
1. Capital outlay (from page 2)
286,364
2. Maintenance:
16,322
3. Road and street services:
a. Traffic control operations
98,094
b. Snow and ice removal
16,700
c. Other
74,946
d. Total (a. through c.)
189,740
4. General administration & miscellaneous
48,618
5. Highway law enforcement and safety
9,809
6. Total (1 through 5)
550,853
B. Debt service on local obligations:
1. Bonds:
a. Interest
76,173
b. Redemption
100,000
c. Total (a. + b.)
176,173
2. Notes:
a. Interest
b. Redemption
c. Total (a. + b.)
0
3. Total (1.c + 2.c)
176,173
C. Payments to State for highways
D. Payments to toll facilities
E. Total disbursements (A.6 + B.3 + C + D)
727,026

IV. LOCAL HIGHWAY DEBT STATUS
(Show all entries at par)
Amount Issued
Opening Debt
2,536,397
0

Redemptions
100,000

Closing Debt
2,436,397
0

V. LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE
A. Beginning Balance
296,736

B. Total Receipts C. Total Disbursements
653,463
446,716

D. Ending Balance
503,483

E. Reconciliation
0

Notes and Comments:

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev. 1-05)

PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE
1
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(Next Page)

STATE:
Colorado
YEAR ENDING (mm/yy):
December 2020

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT
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II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL
ITEM
A.3. Other local imposts:
a. Property Taxes and Assessments
b. Other local imposts:
1. Sales Taxes
2. Infrastructure & Impact Fees
3. Liens
4. Licenses
5. Specific Ownership &/or Other
6. Total (1. through 5.)
c. Total (a. + b.)

AMOUNT

649,789

50,253
700,042
700,042

AMOUNT

ITEM
A.4. Miscellaneous local receipts:
a. Interest on investments
b. Traffic Fines & Penalities
c. Parking Garage Fees
d. Parking Meter Fees
e. Sale of Surplus Property
f. Charges for Services
g. Other Misc. Receipts
h. Other
i. Total (a. through h.)

15,015

720
15,735

(Carry forward to page 1)

ITEM
C. Receipts from State Government
1. Highway-user taxes
2. State general funds
3. Other State funds:
a. State bond proceeds
b. Project Match
c. Motor Vehicle Registrations
d. Other (Specify) - DOLA Grant
e. Other (Specify) Road & Bridge
f. Total (a. through e.)
4. Total (1. + 2. + 3.f)

(Carry forward to page 1)

AMOUNT
102,837

17,593
5,406
22,999
125,836

ITEM
D. Receipts from Federal Government
1. FHWA (from Item I.D.5.)
2. Other Federal agencies:
a. Forest Service
b. FEMA
c. HUD
d. Federal Transit Admin
e. U.S. Corps of Engineers
f. Other Federal
g. Total (a. through f.)
3. Total (1. + 2.g)

AMOUNT

0
(Carry forward to page 1)

III. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL
ON NATIONAL
HIGHWAY
SYSTEM
(a)
A.1. Capital outlay:
a. Right-Of-Way Costs
b. Engineering Costs
c. Construction:
(1). New Facilities
(2). Capacity Improvements
(3). System Preservation
(4). System Enhancement & Operation
(5). Total Construction (1) + (2) + (3) + (4)
d. Total Capital Outlay (Lines 1.a. + 1.b. + 1.c.5)

OFF NATIONAL
HIGHWAY
SYSTEM
(b)

TOTAL
(c)
0
0

0
0

16,322
270,042
286,364
286,364

0
0
16,322
270,042
286,364
286,364
(Carry forward to page 1)

Notes and Comments:

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev.1-05)

PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE
2
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DATE:

June 18, 2021

TO:

Mayor and Board of Trustees

FROM:

Phillip Puckett, Town Administrator

RE:

Declaration of a Local Disaster Emergency and Review of the Remote Participation and Remote
Meetings Policy

Request
Staff is requesting direction from the Board whether to extend the Declaration of a Local Disaster Emergency
regarding the COVID-19 pandemic which is set to expire after June 30, 2021.
During the COVID-19 pandemic, the Town made several IT upgrades to facilitate remote participation for Board
meetings for Trustees, Staff and the public. Staff is sharing the Town’s Remote Participation and Remote
Meetings Policy as a reminder as we continue to transition back to in-person meetings open to the public while
continuing to provide remote connection. The Board can ask questions about this policy and propose changes if
desired.
Background
On March 17, 2020, the Town Administrator issued and order declaring a local disaster which has been extended
multiple times and is set to expire on June 30, 2021. The local declaration has allowed the Town to continue
conducting normal business during public health restrictions. In accordance with our Remote Participation and
Remote Meetings Policy, during an emergency the Board is able to conduct all regular business remotely. While
the Policy allows for remote participation during a non-emergency, there are limitations such as no quasi-judicial
matters will be heard or considered.
The local disaster declaration also provides a justification for other policy decisions such as the COVID Temporary
Use and Liquor Premise Extension.
Staff Recommendation
While the Town can continue everything we are currently doing with some code and policy changes, there is some
concern that without the disaster declaration, we may not be eligible for potential grants or relief funding as we
move forward in the recovery phase. We are not aware of any current funding programs with this requirement;
however, we do not know what will happen in the future. Because of this possibility, staff is recommending that
the Board extend the Local Disaster Emergency Declaration through December 31, 2021.
Staff has no concerns with the current Remote Participation and Remote Meetings Policy unless the Board would
like to propose any changes.
BOT Action
A motion to approve, approve with amendments or deny Resolution No. 30 Series 2021
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
RESOLUTION NO. 30
(Series of 2021)
A RESOLUTION EXTENDING THE DECLARATION OF A LOCAL
DISASTER EMERGENCY IN AND FOR THE TOWN OF BUENA VISTA,
COLORADO THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Colorado Disaster Emergency Act, C.R.S. § 24-33.5-701, et
seq. (the "Act"), in particular Section 24-33.5-709, and Section 2-322 of the Buena Vista Municipal
Code (the "Code"), a local disaster emergency may be declared by the Town Administrator and
extended by the Board of Trustees;
WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the Town Administrator issued an order declaring a local
disaster, which on March 18, 2020 was extended until April 15, 2020, by the Board of Trustees
via Resolution No. 20, Series 2020, which on April 14, 2020 was extended until April 30, 2020,
by the Board of Trustees via Resolution No. 24, Series 2020, which on April 28, 2020 was
extended until May 31, 2020, by the Board of Trustees via Resolution No. 26, Series 2020, which
on May 26, 2020 was extended until June 30, 2020, by the Board of Trustees via Resolution No.
33, Series 2020, which on June 23, 2020 was extended until July 31, 2020, by the Board of Trustees
via Resolution No. 36, Series 2020, which on July 28, 2020 was extended until December 31,
2020, by the Board of Trustees via Resolution No. 42, which on December 8, 2020 was extended
until March 31, 2021, by the Board of Trustees via Resolution No. 65, which on March 23, 2021
was extended to June 30, 2021 via Resolution No. 17;
WHEREAS, the local disaster emergency related to the COVID-19 pandemic continues to
threaten the health, safety and welfare of the Town, its residents, visitors, employees, and
businesses and continues to constitute a local disaster emergency pursuant to the Act;
WHEREAS the Board of Trustees, therefore, desires to extend the declaration of a local
disaster emergency through December 31, 2021; and
WHEREAS, pursuant Section 2-322(b) of the Code, this Resolution shall be promptly filed
with the Town Clerk, delivered to the Chaffee County Emergency Operations Manager, forwarded
to the State Office of Emergency Management, and the County Clerk. The public shall also be
notified promptly through general dissemination to the news media, posting on the Town website
and by the use of other means of communication appropriate for informing the general public.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR
THE TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO as follows:
Section 1.
The Town Board hereby extends its Declaration of a Local Disaster
Emergency in and for the Town of Buena Vista, Colorado, until December 31, 2021, unless

117
sooner terminated by action of the Town Board, at which time the Town Board's Declaration may
be extended by action of the Town Board.
Section 2.
This Resolution shall be filed with the Town Clerk, the Chaffee County
Clerk and Recorder, the Chaffee County Emergency Operations Manager, and the Colorado Office
of Emergency Management. The public shall also be notified promptly through general
dissemination to the news media, posting on the Town website and by the use of other means of
communication appropriate for informing the general public.
RESOLVED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of June, 2021.
TOWN OF BUENA VISTA

BY: ________________________________
Duff Lacy, Mayor
ATTEST:

__________________________________
Paula Barnett, Town Clerk
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TOWN OF BUENA VISTA BOARD OF TRUSTEES
REMOTE PARTICIPATION AND REMOTE MEETINGS POLICY
I.

Purpose.

The purpose of this Policy is to specify the circumstances under which a member of the
Board of Trustees ("Member") may participate in regular and special meetings by telephone or
other electronic means of participation, such as video-conferencing ("Remote Participation") and
the situations under which the meeting itself may be held without the physical presence of
Members at the designated meeting location (a "Remote Meeting").
II.

Statement of General Policy.

A Member may participate in a meeting of the Board of Trustees by remote, electronic
means in accordance with this Policy.
A.

Non-Emergency Situations.

Remote Participation in non-emergency situations shall be made available and shall be
limited as follows:
1.
A Member may listen by telephone or other electronic means to any Board
of Trustees meeting. Such Member listening via telephone shall be deemed present for
purposes of determining a quorum, but only for meetings during which no quasi-judicial
matters will be heard or considered. In non-emergency situations, the Member may not
participate nor vote in a quasi-judicial public hearing; however, the Member may maintain
the remote connection and monitor and listen to the hearing. The Member may participate
and vote in legislative matters.
2.
Listening telephonically or by remote means is intended to be an infrequent
or occasional substitution for physical attendance, and there is a general preference for inperson meeting attendance except in emergency situations. The Board of Trustees may,
by majority vote of a quorum present, declare a Member's repeated use of Remote
Participation excessive and deny a Member's privilege to use Remote Participation for a
specific meeting or meetings.
3.
At least one Member of the Board of Trustees shall be present at the regular
meeting location.
4.
Remote Participation may also be made available to a Member during an
executive session.
5.
The Board of Trustees may discontinue the use of Remote Participation by
one or more Member during a meeting when the Remote Participation results in delays or
interference in the meeting process; e.g., where the telephone connection or connection by
other remote means is repeatedly lost, the quality of the connection is unduly noisy or
otherwise problematic to the conduct of the meeting, or the listening member is unable to
1

6/18/2021
C:\USERS\PBARNETT\APPDATA\LOCAL\MICROSOFT\WINDOWS\INETCACHE\CONTENT.OUTLOOK\16LW1V3P\REMOTE MEETINGS
POLICY-031620.DOCX
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hear speakers using a normal speaking voice amplified to a level suitable for the meeting
audience in attendance.
6.
In non-emergency situations, remote participation shall only constitute
actual attendance for purposes of establishing a quorum for meetings during which no
quasi-judicial matters will be heard or considered.
B.

Emergency Situations.

Remote Participation or Remote Meetings in emergency situations shall be made available
in the event a quorum is unable to meet at the day, hour, and place fixed by the rules and procedures
of the Board of Trustees because meeting in person is not practical or prudent due to a health
pandemic or emergency affecting the Town. In emergency situations, Remote Meetings may be
conducted by telephone, electronically, or by other means of communication so as to provide
maximum practical notice. Remote Participation and Remote Meetings may be held if all of the
following conditions are met:
1.
The Town Administrator or the Mayor determines that meeting in person is not
practical or prudent, because of a health pandemic or declaration of emergency affecting
the Town;
2.
All Members can hear one another or otherwise communicate with one another and
can hear or read all discussion and testimony in a manner designed to provide maximum
notice and participation;
3.
Members of the public present at the regular meeting location can hear or read all
discussion, testimony and votes, unless not feasible due to the pandemic or emergency;
4.
In emergency situations, Remote Participation shall constitute actual attendance of
Members for all purposes, including without limitation, voting on quasi-judicial matters,
provided that the applicant in the quasi-judicial matter consents to the Remote Participation
or Remote Meeting and waives in writing all possible procedural objections. At the
applicant's discretion, the matter may be continued to another meeting;
5.

All votes are conducted by roll call; and

6.
Minutes of the meeting are taken and promptly recorded, and such records are open
to public inspection.
III.

Arranging for Remote Participation; holding a Remote Meeting.
A.

shall:

Non-Emergency Situations.

To arrange to participate via Remote Participation in a non-emergency situation, a Member

2
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1.
Contact the Mayor, Town Administrator, or Town Clerk in advance of the meeting
to determine if an arrangement for such participation via telephone conference or video
conference is possible. Members shall endeavor to advise the Town of their intent to
participate via Remote Participation at the earliest possible time and not less than twentyfour (24) hours prior to the requested participation.
2.
The Town shall initiate the Remote Participation not more than ten (10) minutes
prior to the scheduled time of the meeting. Upon disconnection during a meeting, the
Town Clerk shall make one attempt to re-initiate the connection.
B.

Emergency Situations.

Remote Participation or Remote Meetings in an emergency situation shall be coordinated,
to the extent possible, to ensure full and timely notice is given to the public. Notice shall set forth
the time of the meeting, the fact that some Members may participate remotely, and the right of the
public to monitor the meeting from a specified location. To the extent possible, if not inconsistent
with the emergency situation, the meeting location shown in the meeting notice will be open to
the public, and audio will be available so that all actions being taken can be heard.
IV.

Applicability of Policy.

This Policy applies to regular and special meetings (including study sessions) of the Board
of Trustees of the Town of Buena Vista. By order of the Mayor or Town Administrator, and
consistent with an emergency situation, this Policy may be applied to other Town boards and
commissions.
V.

Reasonable Accommodations.

The Town shall provide reasonable accommodation and shall waive or modify provisions
of this Policy to provide disabled Members full and equal access to meetings.

3
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DATE:

June 22, 2021

TO:

Board of Trustees

FROM:

Joel Benson, Special Projects Manager

RE:

IGA with CDOT for Intersection at US24/Baylor and DePaul

Request: A motion to approve Resolution #31: Authorization to enter into a Contract with
CDOT for construction of a new traffic signal at the intersection of US Hwy 24 and
Baylor/DePaul, including the expenditure of the budgeted amount of $60,000 toward design
costs.
Background: The intersection of US Hwy 24 and Baylor/DePaul is a difficult intersection to
navigate in any motorized vehicle and extremely unfriendly for bicycles and pedestrians. This
intersection provides the only access to southeast Buena Vista across the railroad tracks. It is a
primary access for the high school and middle school, much of Town’s industrial and
commercial area, many residences, emergency services, and the hospital. Northbound traffic
just entering town often exceeds the reduced speed limit and southbound traffic accelerates
while leaving town. Furthermore, DePaul and Baylor are offset and create confusion and
increased danger. In 2019, the Town carried out a traffic warrant analysis and it was deemed
that a traffic signal is needed. Funding has recently been approved for CDOT to address this
intersection. Design work will begin this year. Funds are allocated for installation over the next
few years.
The Town has budgeted $60,000 for design work in 2021. CDOT is taking the lead for the
project and will coordinate everything. Town’s contribution will be leveraged for this CDOT
Region 5 to obtain sufficient funding in a timely manner.
There may be funds left over to work on improvements to the US24/Steele intersection as well.
This would be a bonus, and is not to be expected.
The Contract, reviewed by Town Attorney Parker outlines responsibilities of each party (CDOT
and the Town) and denotes the use of the Town’s $60,000 for design work. There is one
amendment in Page 7, Section 25 (b) that will be in the final document adding "and Local
Agency" to the wording, "Financial obligations of the State AND LOCAL AGENCY payable after

Page 1 of 2
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the current State AND LOCAL AGENCY Fiscal Year are contingent upon funds for that purpose
being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available."

Page 2 of 2

123
RESOLUTION NO. 31
(Series 2021)
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF BUENA
VISTA, COLORADO, APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH THE COLORADO
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE DESIGN AND
CONSTRUCTION OF A TRAFFIC SIGNAL ON US HIGHWAY 24 AT THE
INTERSECTION OF DE PAUL AVENUE AND BAYLOR DRIVE
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Town of Buena Vista desires to provide funding to the
Colorado Department of Transportation ("CDOT") in return for CDOT's design and construction of a traffic
signal on US Highway 24 at the intersection of DePaul Avenue and Baylor Drive.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF BUENA
VISTA, COLORADO, as follows:
Section 1. The agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved and the Mayor
or Town Administrator is authorized to execute the same.
RESOLVED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of June, 2021.
TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO

_______________________________
Mayor, Duff Lacy
ATTEST:
__________________________________
Town Clerk, Paula Barnett
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OLA #: 331002492
Routing #: 21-HA5-XC-00127

(Local $CDOTWRK)
PROJECT: C M155-004 (23683)

REGION: 5 (vjm)

CONTRACT
THIS CONTRACT, executed this _____ day of ______________, ________ by and between the State of Colorado, for
the use and benefit of the Colorado Department of Transportation (“State” or “CDOT”) and the TOWN OF BUENA
VISTA, PO Box 2002, Buena Vista, Colorado, 81211, CDOT Vendor #: 0002000013 (“Local Agency”), and the State
and the Local Agency together shall be referred to as the “Parties.”

RECITALS
1. Authority exists in the law and funds have been budgeted, appropriated and otherwise made available and a sufficient
uncommitted balance thereof remains available for payment of project and Local Agency costs in Fund Number
400, Function 3020, GL Acct. 451100010, WBS Element or Cost Center N/A, (Contract Encumbrance Amount:
$0.00).
2. Required approval, clearance and coordination have been accomplished from and with appropriate agencies.
3. Section 43-2-102 and 103, C.R.S require the State to maintain state highways (including where such highways
extend through a city or an incorporated town), and 43-2-135 describes certain specific responsibilities of the State
and affected local entities (respectively) with respect to state highways that are also part of a local street system.
4. State funds may be awarded pursuant to Multimodal Transportation Options Funding (“MMOF”). MMOF means
money transferred from the general fund to the fund pursuant to C.R.S. §§24-75-219 (5)(a)(III) and (5)(b)(III)
and any other money that the general assembly may appropriate or transfer to the fund. These funds are subject
to an expiration date.
5. The Local Agency has estimated the contribution and is prepared to provide the funding required for their
contribution toward the Project, as evidenced by an appropriate ordinance or resolution duly passed and adopted by
the authorized representatives of the Local Agency, which expressly authorizes the Local Agency to enter into this
agreement and to expend its funds for the Contribution.
6. The Local Agency has funds available and desires to provide 100% of the funding for the Work. These funds may
be MMOF.
7. This contract is executed under the authority of §§ 29-1-203, 43-1-110; 43-1-116, 43-2-101(4)(c) and 43-2-144,
C.R.S.
8. The parties hereto desire to agree upon the division of responsibilities with regard to the project.

THE PARTIES NOW AGREE THAT:
Section 1.

Scope of Work

The work under this Contract shall consist of design and construction of a new traffic signal on US 24 at the intersection
of De Paul Avenue and Baylor Drive in the Town of Buena Vista, CO, and the Local Agency shall provide their
Contribution toward the Project, in Buena Vista, Colorado, as more specifically described in Exhibit A.
Section 2.

Order of Precedence

In the event of conflicts or inconsistencies between this Contract and its exhibits, such conflicts or inconsistencies shall
be resolved by reference to the documents in the following order of priority:
A. This Contract
B. Exhibit A (Scope of Work)
C. Other Exhibits in descending order of their attachment.
Document Builder Generated
Rev. 05/07/2020
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OLA #: 331002492
Routing #: 21-HA5-XC-00127

Section 3.

Term

This Contract shall be effective upon approval of the CDOT Chief Engineer or designee and shall terminate on June
07, 2031, or sooner if any of the State’s funding expires, or is sooner terminated or unless performance is extended in
accordance with this Contract.
Section 4.

Project Funding Provisions

A. The Local Agency has estimated the total cost of the Contribution and is prepared to provide its funding, as evidenced
by an the signing of this Contract, which expressly authorizes the Local Agency the authority to expend its
Contribution toward the Project.
B. The contribution is estimated to be $60,000.00.
C. The maximum amount payable by the Local Agency under this contract shall be $60,000.00 unless such
amount is increased by an appropriate written modification to this contract executed by the Parties hereto before
any increased cost is incurred
D

The Parties hereto agree that this contract is contingent upon all funds designated for the project herein being
made available from state sources, as applicable. Should these sources fail to provide necessary funds as agreed
upon herein, the contract may be terminated by either Party, provided that any Party terminating its interest and
obligations herein shall not be relieved of any obligations which existed prior to the effective date of such
termination or which may occur as a result of such termination.

Section 5.

Project Payment Provisions

A. The Local Agency will reimburse the State for incurred costs relative to the project following the Local Agency's
review and approval of such charges, subject to the terms and conditions of this agreement.
B. If the Local Agency is to be billed for CDOT incurred costs, the billing procedure shall be as follows:
1. Upon receipt of each bill from the State, the Local Agency will remit to the State the amount billed no later than
60 days after receipt of each bill. Should the Local Agency fail to pay moneys due the State within 60 days of
demand or within such other period as may be agreed between the parties hereto, the Local Agency agrees that,
at the request of the State, the State Treasurer may withhold an equal amount from future apportionment due
the Local Agency from the Highway Users Tax Fund and to pay such funds directly to the State. Interim funds,
until the State is reimbursed, shall be payable from the State Highway Supplementary Fund (400).
2. If the Local Agency fails to make timely payment to the State as required by this section (within 60 days after
the date of each bill), the Local Agency shall pay interest to the State at a rate of one percent per month on the
amount of the payment which was not made in a timely manner, until the billing is paid in full. The interest
shall accrue for the period from the required payment date to the date on which payment is made.
C. The State will prepare and submit to the Local Agency, no more than monthly, charges for costs incurred relative
to the project. The State’s invoices shall include a description of the amounts of services performed, the dates of
performance and the amounts and description of reimbursable expenses. The invoices will be prepared in
accordance with the State’s standard policies, procedures and standardized billing format.
D. If the project is funded by MMOF, then the Local Agency must submit all documentation necessary to process
the payments 30 days prior to end of State fiscal year. The State fiscal year ends June 30th. MMOF projects must
submit final billing for all work 30 days prior to the end of the State fiscal year that funds expire. If MMOF are
used, and the State knows that the funds will expire, the State shall promptly notify Local Agency of the expiration
date. The State will promptly notify the Local Agency if that expiration date changes.

Section 6.

State and Local Agency Commitments

The Scope of Work (Exhibit A) describes the work to be performed.
A. Design [if applicable]
1. If the work includes preliminary design or final design (the “Construction Plans”), or design work sheets, or
special provisions and estimates (collectively referred to as the “Plans”), the State shall comply with the
following requirements, as applicable:
a. perform or provide the Plans, to the extent required by the nature of the work.
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b.

prepare final design (Construction Plans) in accord with the requirements of the latest edition of the
American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO) manual or other
standard, such as the Uniform Building Code, as approved by CDOT.
c. prepare special provisions and estimates in accord with the State’s Roadway and Bridge Design
Manuals and Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction.
d. include details of any required detours in the Plans, in order to prevent any interfe rence of the
construction work and to protect the traveling public.
e. stamp the Plans produced by a Colorado Registered Professional Engineer.
f. provide final assembly of Plans and contract documents.
g. be responsible for the Plans being accurate and complete.
h. make no further changes in the Plans following the award of the construction contract except by
agreement in writing between the parties. The Plans shall be considered final when approved and
accepted by the parties hereto, and when final they shall be deemed incorporated herein.
B. Construction [if applicable]
1. If the work includes construction, the State shall perform the construction in accordance with the approved
design plans and/or administer the construction all in accord with the Scope of Work (Exhibit A). Such
administration shall include project inspection and testing; approving sources of materials; performing required
plant and shop inspections; documentation of contract payments, testing and inspection activities; preparing and
approving pay estimates; preparing, approving and securing the funding for contract modification orders and
minor contract revisions; processing contractor claims; construction supervision; and meeting the Quality
Control requirements of the FHWA/CDOT Stewardship Agreement.
2. Subject to Section 5, if the State is the responsible party:
a. it shall appoint a qualified professional engineer, licensed in the State of Colorado, as the State Agency
Project Engineer (SAPE), to perform that administration. The SAPE shall administer the project in
accordance with this agreement, the requirements of the construction contract and applicable State
procedures.
b. if bids are to be let for the construction of the project, the State shall, in conjunction with the Local
Agency, advertise the call for bids and upon concurrence by the Local Agency will award the
construction contract(s) to the low responsive, responsible bidder(s).
(1) in advertising and awarding the bid for the construction of a federal-aid project, the State shall
comply with applicable requirements of 23 USC § 112 and 23 CFR Parts 633 and 635 and
C.R.S. § 24-92-101 et seq. Those requirements include, without limitation, that the
State/contractor shall incorporate Form 1273 in its entirety verbatim into any subcontract(s)
for those services as terms and conditions therefore, as required by 23 CFR 633.102(e).
(2) the Local Agency has the option to concur or not concur in the proposal of the apparent low
bidder for work on which competitive bids have been received. The Local Agency must declare
its concurrence or non-concurrence within 3 working days after said bids are publicly opened.
(3) by indicating its concurrence in such award, the Local Agency, acting by or through its duly
authorized representatives, agrees to provide additional funds, subject to their availability and
appropriation for that purpose, if required to complete the work under this project if no
additional federal-aid funds will be made available for the project.
c. If all or part of the construction work is to be accomplished by State personnel (i.e. by force account),
rather than by a competitive bidding process, the State will ensure that all such force account work is
accomplished in accordance with the pertinent State specifications and requirements with 23 CFR 635,
Subpart B, Force Account Construction.
Section 7.

ROW Acquisition and Relocation

If the Project includes right of way, prior to this project being advertised for bids, the State will certify in writing that
all right of way has been acquired in accordance with the applicable state and federal regulations, or that no additional
right of way is required.
Any acquisition/relocation activities must comply with: all applicable federal and state statutes and regulations,
including but not limited to the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 as
amended (P.L. 91-646) and the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies for Federal
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and Federally Assisted Programs as amended (49 CFR Part 24); CDOT’s Right of Way Manual; and CDOT’s Policy
and Procedural Directives.
Allocation of Responsibilities are as follows:
●

●
●

Federal participation in right of way acquisition (3111 charges), relocation (3109 charges) activities, if
any, and right of way incidentals (expenses incidental to acquisition/relocation of right of way – 3114
charges);
Federal participation in right of way acquisition (3111 charges), relocation (3109 charges) but no
participation in incidental expenses (3114 charges); or
No federal participation in right of way acquisition (3111 charges) and relocation activities (3109
expenses).

Regardless of the option selected above, the State retains oversight responsibilities . The Local Agency’s and the
State’s responsibilities for each option is specifically set forth in CDOT’s Right of Way Manual. The manual is
located at http://www.coloradodot.info/business/manuals/right-of-way.
If right of way is purchased for a state highway, including areas of influence of the state highway, the local agency
shall immediately convey title to such right of way to CDOT after the Local Agency obtains title.
Section 8.

Utilities

If necessary, the State will be responsible for obtaining the proper clearance or approval from any utility company,
which may become involved in this Project. Prior to this Project being advertised for bids, the responsible party will
certify in writing that all such clearances have been obtained.
Section 9.

Railroads

In the event the Project involves modification of a railroad company’s facilities whereby the work is to be
accomplished by railroad company forces, the State shall make timely application to the Public Utilities Commission
requesting its order providing for the installation of the proposed improvements and not proceed with that part of the
work without compliance. The State shall also establish contact with the railroad company involved for the purpose
of complying with applicable provisions of 23 CFR 646, subpart B, concerning federal-aid projects involving railroad
facilities, including:
1. Executing an agreement setting out what work is to be accomplished and the location(s) thereof, and that the
costs of the improvement shall be eligible for federal participation.
2. Obtaining the railroad’s detailed estimate of the cost of the work.
3. Establishing future maintenance responsibilities for the proposed installation.
4. Prescribing future use or dispositions of the proposed improvements in the event of abandonment or elimination
of a grade crossing.
5. Establishing future repair and/or replacement responsibilities in the event of accidental destruction or damage
to the installation.
Section 10. Environmental Obligations
The State shall perform all work in accordance with the requirements of the current federal and state environmental
regulations including the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA) as applicable.
Section 11. Maintenance Obligations
The State will maintain and operate the improvements constructed under this agreement at its own cost and expense
during their useful life, in a manner satisfactory to the State and FHWA. The State will make proper provisions for
such maintenance obligations each year. Such maintenance and operations shall be conducted in accordance with all
applicable statutes, ordinances and regulations. The State and FHWA will make periodic inspections of the project to
verify that such improvements are being adequately maintained.
Section 12. Record Keeping
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The State shall maintain a complete file of all records, documents, communications, and other written materials, which
pertain to the costs incurred under this agreement. The State shall maintain such records for a period of three (3) years
after the date of termination of this agreement or final payment hereunder, whichever is later, or for such further period
as may be necessary to resolve any matters which may be pending. The State shall make such materials available for
inspection at all reasonable times and shall permit duly authorized agents and employees of the Local Agency and
FHWA to inspect the project and to inspect, review and audit the project records.
Section 13. Termination Provisions
This agreement may be terminated as follows:
A. Termination for Convenience. The State may terminate this agreement at any time the State determines that the
purposes of the distribution of moneys under the agreement would no longer be served by completion of the
project. The State shall effect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Local Agency and
specifying the effective date thereof, at least twenty (20) days before the effective date of such termination.
B. Termination for Cause. If, through any cause, the Local Agency shall fail to fulfill, in a timely and proper manner,
its obligations under this agreement, or if the Local Agency shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or
stipulations of this agreement, the State shall thereupon have the right to terminate this agree ment for cause by
giving written notice to the Local Agency of its intent to terminate and at least ten (10) days opportunity to cure
the default or show cause why termination is otherwise not appropriate. In the event of termination, all finished
or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs and reports or other
material prepared by the Local Agency under this agreement shall, at the option of the State, become its property,
and the Local Agency shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any services and supplies
delivered and accepted.
Notwithstanding the above, the Local Agency shall not be relieved of liability to the State for any damages sustained
by the State by virtue of any breach of the agreement by the Local Agency, and the State may withhold payment to
the Local Agency for the purposes of mitigating its damages until such time as the exact amount of damages due to
the State from the Local Agency is determined.
If after such termination it is determined, for any reason, that the Local Agency was not in default or that the Local
Agency’s action/inaction was excusable, such termination shall be treated as a termination for convenience, and the
rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the agreement had been terminated for convenience, as
described herein.
Section 14. Legal Authority
The Local Agency warrants that it possesses the legal authority to enter into this agreement and that it has taken all
actions required by its procedures, by-laws, and/or applicable law to exercise that authority, and to lawfully authorize
its undersigned signatory to execute this agreement and to bind the Local Agency to its terms. The person(s) executing
this agreement on behalf of the Local Agency warrants that such person(s) has full authorization to execute this
agreement.
Section 15. Representatives and Notice
The State will provide liaison with the Local Agency through the State's Region Director, Region 5, 3803 Main
Avenue, Durango, CO 81301. Said Region Director will also be responsible for coordinating the State's activities
under this agreement and will also issue a "Notice to Proceed" to the Local Agency for commencement of the work.
All communications relating to the day-to-day activities for the work shall be exchanged between representatives of
the State’s Transportation Region 5 and the Local Agency. All communication, notices, and correspondence shall be
addressed to the individuals identified below. Either party may from time to time designate in writing new or substitute
representatives.
If to the State:
David Peyton, P.E., CDOT R5 Traffic Engineer
CDOT Region 5
3803 Main Avenue
Durango, Colorado 81301
970-385-8948
david.peyton@state.co.us
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Section 16. Successors
Except as herein otherwise provided, this agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto
and their respective successors and assigns.
Section 17. Third Party Beneficiaries
It is expressly understood and agreed that the enforcement of the terms and conditions of this agreement and all rights
of action relating to such enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the State and the Local Agency. Nothing contained
in this agreement shall give or allow any claim or right of action whatsoever by any other third person. It is the express
intention of the State and the Local Agency that any such person or entity, other than the State or the Local Agency
receiving services or benefits under this agreement shall be deemed an incidental beneficiary only.
Section 18. Governmental Immunity
Notwithstanding any other provision of this agreement to the contrary, no term or condition of this agreement shall be
construed or interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of any of the immunities, rights, benefits, protection, or other
provisions of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, § 24-10-101, et seq., C.R.S., as now or hereafter amended.
The parties understand and agree that liability for claims for injuries to persons or property arising out of negligence
of the State of Colorado, its departments, institutions, agencies, boards, officials and employees is controlled and
limited by the provisions of § 24-10-101, et seq., C.R.S., as now or hereafter amended and the risk management
statutes, §§ 24-30-1501, et seq., C.R.S., as now or hereafter amended.
Section 19. Severability
To the extent that this agreement may be executed and performance of the obligations of the parties may be
accomplished within the intent of the agreement, the terms of this agreement are severable, and should any term or
provision hereof be declared invalid or become inoperative for any reason, such invalidity or failure shall not affect
the validity of any other term or provision hereof.
Section 20. Waiver
The waiver of any breach of a term, provision, or requirement of this agreement shall not be construed or deemed as
a waiver of any subsequent breach of such term, provision, or requirement, or of any other term, provision or
requirement.
Section 21. Entire Understanding
This agreement is intended as the complete integration of all understandings between the parties. No prior or
contemporaneous addition, deletion, or other amendment hereto shall have any force or effect whatsoever, unless
embodied herein by writing. No subsequent novation, renewal, addition, deletion, or other amendment hereto shall
have any force or effect unless embodied in a writing executed and approved pursuant to the State Fiscal Rules.
Section 22. Survival of Agreement Terms
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the parties understand and agree that all terms and conditions of this
agreement and the exhibits and attachments hereto which may require continued performance, compliance or effect
beyond the termination date of the agreement shall survive such termination date and shall be enforceable by the State
as provided herein in the event of such failure to perform or comply by the Local Agency.
Section 23. Modification and Amendment
This agreement is subject to such modifications as may be required by changes in federal or State law, or their
implementing regulations. Any such required modification shall automatically be incorporated into and be part of this
agreement on the effective date of such change as if fully set forth herein. Except as provided above, no modification
of this agreement shall be effective unless agreed to in writing by both parties in an amendment to this agreement that
is properly executed and approved in accordance with applicable law.
Section 24. Disputes
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Except as otherwise provided in this agreement, any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under this agreement,
which is not disposed of by agreement, will be decided by the Chief Engineer of the Department of Transportation.
The decision of the Chief Engineer will be final and conclusive unless, within 30 calendar days after the date of receipt
of a copy of such written decision, the Local Agency mails or otherwise furnishes to the State a written appeal
addressed to the Executive Director of the Department of Transportation. In connection with any appeal proceeding
under this clause, the Local Agency shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of
its appeal. Pending final decision of a dispute hereunder, the Local Agency shall proceed diligently with the
performance of the agreement in accordance with the Chief Engineer’s decision. The decision of the Executive
Director or his duly authorized representative for the determination of such appeals will be final and conclusive and
serve as final agency action. This dispute clause does not preclude consideration of questions of law in connection
with decisions provided for herein. Nothing in this agreement, however, shall be construed as making final the
decision of any administrative official, representative, or board on a question of law.
Section 25. Colorado Special Provisions (Colorado Fiscal Rule 3-3)
These Special Provisions apply to all contracts except where noted in italics.
A. Statutory Approval §24-30-202(1), C.R.S.
This Contract shall not be valid until it has been approved by the Colorado State Controller or designee. If this
Contract is for a Major Information Technology Project, as defined in §24-37.5-102(2.6), then this Contract shall
not be valid until it has been approved by the State’s Chief Information Officer or designee.
B. Fund Availability §24-30-202(5.5), C.R.S.
Financial obligations of the State payable after the current State Fiscal Year are contingent upon funds for that
purpose being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available.
C. Governmental Immunity
Liability for claims for injuries to persons or property arising from the negligence of the State, its departments,
boards, commissions committees, bureaus, offices, employees and officials shall be controlled and limite d by the
provisions of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §24-10-101, et seq., C.R.S.; the Federal Tort Claims
Act, 28 U.S.C. Pt. VI, Ch. 171 and 28 U.S.C. 1346(b), and the State’s risk management statutes, §§24 -30-1501,
et seq. C.R.S. No term or condition of this Contract shall be construed or interpreted as a waiver, express or
implied, of any of the immunities, rights, benefits, protections, or other provisions, contained in these statutes.
D. Independent Contractor
Contractor shall perform its duties hereunder as an independent contractor and not as an employee. Neither
Contractor nor any agent or employee of Contractor shall be deemed to be an agent or employee of the State.
Contractor shall not have authorization, express or implied, to bind the State to any agreement, liability or
understanding, except as expressly set forth herein. Contractor and its employees and agents are not entitled
to unemployment insurance or workers compensation benefits through the State and the State shall not
pay for or otherwise provide such coverage for Contractor or any of its agents or employees. Contractor
shall pay when due all applicable employment taxes and income taxes and local head taxes incurred
pursuant to this Contract. Contractor shall (i) provide and keep in force workers' compensation and
unemployment compensation insurance in the amounts required by law, (ii) provide proof thereof when
requested by the State, and (iii) be solely responsible for its acts and those of its employees and agents.
E. Compliance with Law
Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal and State laws, rules, and regulations in effect or hereafter
established, including, without limitation, laws applicable to discrimination and unfair employment practices.
F. Choice of Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue
Colorado law, and rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto, shall be applied in the interpretation, execution,
and enforcement of this Contract. Any provision included or incorporated herein by reference which conflicts
with said laws, rules, and regulations shall be null and void. All suits or actions related to this Contract shall be
filed and proceedings held in the State of Colorado and exclusive venue shall be in the City and County of Denver.
G. Prohibited Terms
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Any term included in this Contract that requires the State to indemnify or hold Contractor harmless; requires the
State to agree to binding arbitration; limits Contractor’s liability for damages resulting from death, bodily injury,
or damage to tangible property; or that conflicts with this provision in any way shall be void ab initio. Nothing
in this Contract shall be construed as a waiver of any provision of §24-106-109 C.R.S. Any term included in this
Contract that limits Contractor’s liability that is not void under this section shall apply only in excess of any
insurance to be maintained under this Contract, and no insurance policy shall be interpreted as being subject to
any limitations of liability of this Contract.
H. Software Piracy Prohibition
State or other public funds payable under this Contract shall not be used for the acquisition, operation, or
maintenance of computer software in violation of federal copyright laws or applicable licensing restrictions.
Contractor hereby certifies and warrants that, during the term of this Contract and any extensions, Contractor has
and shall maintain in place appropriate systems and controls to prevent such improper use of public funds. If the
State determines that Contractor is in violation of this provision, the State may exercise any remedy available at
law or in equity or under this Contract, including, without limitation, immediate termination of this Contract and
any remedy consistent with federal copyright laws or applicable licensing restrictions.
I.

Employee Financial Interest/Conflict of Interest §§24-18-201 and 24-50-507, C.R.S.
The signatories aver that to their knowledge, no employee of the State has any personal or beneficial interest
whatsoever in the service or property described in this Contract. Contractor has no interest and shall not acquire
any interest, direct or indirect, that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Contractor’s
services and Contractor shall not employ any person having such known interests.

J. Vendor Offset and Erroneous Payments §§24-30-202(1) and 24-30-202.4, C.R.S.
[Not applicable to intergovernmental agreements] Subject to §24-30-202.4(3.5), C.R.S., the State Controller
may withhold payment under the State’s vendor offset intercept system for debts owed to State agencies for: (i)
unpaid child support debts or child support arrearages; (ii) unpaid balances of tax, accrued interest, or other
charges specified in §§39-21-101, et seq., C.R.S.; (iii) unpaid loans due to the Student Loan Division of the
Department of Higher Education; (iv) amounts required to be paid to the Unemployment Compensation Fund;
and (v) other unpaid debts owing to the State as a result of final agency determination or judicial action. The
State may also recover, at the State’s discretion, payments made to Contractor in error for any reason, including,
but not limited to, overpayments or improper payments, and unexpended or excess funds received by Contractor
by deduction from subsequent payments under this Contract, deduction from any payment due under any other
contracts, grants or agreements between the State and Contractor, or by any other appropriate method for
collecting debts owed to the State.
K.

Public Contracts for Services §§8-17.5-101, et seq., C.R.S.
[Not applicable to agreements relating to the offer, issuance, or sale of securities, investment advisory services
or fund management services, sponsored projects, intergovernmental agreements, or information technology
services or products and services] Contractor certifies, warrants, and agrees that it does not knowingly employ
or contract with an illegal alien who will perform work under this Contract and will confirm the employment
eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment in the United States to perform work under this
Contract, through participation in the E-Verify Program or the State verification program established pursuant to
§8-17.5-102(5)(c), C.R.S., Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform
work under this Contract or enter into a contract with a Subcontractor that fails to certify to Contractor that the
Subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this Contract.
Contractor (i) shall not use E-Verify Program or the program procedures of the Colorado Department of Labor
and Employment (“Department Program”) to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while this
Contract is being performed, (ii) shall notify the Subcontractor and the contracting State agency or institution of
higher education within 3 days if Contractor has actual knowledge that a Subcontractor is employing or
contracting with an illegal alien for work under this Contract, (iii) shall terminate the subcontract if a
Subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien within 3 days of receiving the notice,
and (iv) shall comply with reasonable requests made in the course of an investigation, undertaken pursuant to §8 17.5-102(5), C.R.S., by the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment. If Contractor participates in the
Department program, Contractor shall deliver to the contracting State agency, Institution of Higher Education or
political subdivision, a written, notarized affirmation, affirming that Contractor has examined the legal work
status of such employee, and shall comply with all of the other requirements of the Department program. If
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Contractor fails to comply with any requirement of this provision or §§8-17.5-101, et seq., C.R.S., the contracting
State agency, institution of higher education or political subdivision may terminate this Contract for breach and,
if so terminated, Contractor shall be liable for damages.
L. Public Contracts with Natural Persons §§24-76.5-101, et seq., C.R.S.
Contractor, if a natural person eighteen (18) years of age or older, hereby swears and affirms under penalty of
perjury that Contractor (i) is a citizen or otherwise lawfully present in the United States pursuant to federal law,
(ii) shall comply with the provisions of §§24-76.5-101, et seq., C.R.S., and (iii) has produced one form of
identification required by §24-76.5-103, C.R.S. prior to the Effective Date of this Contract.
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THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE EXECUTED THIS CONTRACT
* Persons signing for the Local Agency hereby swear and affirm that they are authorized to act on the Local Agency’s behalf
and acknowledge that the State is relying on their representations to that effect.

By:

THE LOCAL AGENCY

STATE OF COLORADO

TOWN OF BUENA VISTA

Jared S. Polis, GOVERNOR
Colorado Department of Transportation

____________________________________

Title:

____________________________________

____________________________________________
*Signature

By: _________________________________________
Stephen Harelson, P.E., Chief Engineer
(For) Shoshana M. Lew, Executive Director

Date: _______________________________________

Date: ________________________________________
2nd The Local Agency Signature [if Needed]

By:

____________________________________

Title:

____________________________________

____________________________________________
*Signature

Date: _______________________________________
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US 24 at DePaul Ave/Baylor Dr. - Buena Vista
CM155-004
Subaccount #23683
This project involves the design and construction of a new traffic signal on US 24 at the intersection of
De Paul Ave/Baylor Drive in the Town of Buena Vista, CO.
Work in the design phase includes gathering survey data, creating plan layouts and design models,
producing a set of construction plans, coordinating with specialty units for project clearances,
developing project cost estimates, and preparing the project for advertisement.
Work in the construction phase includes installation of new signal poles, mast arms, and lighting. As
part of the signal installation, the side street approaches to the intersection will be realigned, which will
reguire new grading and asphalt to be installed. Several utilities will need to be adjusted or relocated to
accommodate the new signal. Striping and signing on all approaches will be modified for the new signal.
CDOT will manage both the design and construction of the project as a CDOT Traffic & Safety project –
Project # C M155-004 (23683). The Local Agency shall contribute $60,000.00 towards the design phase
of the project.
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AGENDA
FOR THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
OF THE TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO
July 13, 2021
Work Session at 6:00 PM – Board of Trustees Handbook
(The Board will not make decisions during the Work Session)
Regular Meeting at 7:00 PM
Members of the Board of Trustees will be meeting at the Community Center
715 E. Main Street, Buena Vista, Colorado
Staff and the Public will attend the meeting virtually.
To participate in Public Comment and/or Public Hearings, you must connect to the video conference.
Password: 971317
Conferencing Access Information: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88075048459
Listen via phone at 1-301-715-8592
Meeting ID: 880 7504 8459 Password: 971317
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MAY TAKE ACTION ON ANY OF THE FOLLOWING AGENDA
ITEMS AS PRESENTED OR MODIFIED PRIOR TO OR DURING THE MEETING, AND
ITEMS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE AGENDA ITEMS
I.

CALL TO ORDER

II.

ROLL CALL

III.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

IV. AGENDA ADOPTION
The Board approves the agenda at the start of the meeting including modifications.
V.

CONSENT AGENDA
Approval of matters that are routine in nature that require review and/or approval, i.e. minutes and reports.
(Professional Service Agreements (PSA) that exceed $25,000.00 require the Consent Agenda to be approved by
a Roll Call vote)
A. Minutes
1. Board of Trustees Regular Meeting – June 22, 2021
2.
B. Code Enforcement Quarterly Report

VI.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Citizen participation where the public can sign up prior to the start of the meeting in order to speak during public
comment. Three minutes for matters not on the agenda or for agenda items not scheduled for Public Hearing. Enter
your name, address, and subject to be discussed in the Zoom Chat box, or when Mayor Lacy asks for Public
Comment, click the raise hand button in the webinar control panel, or by phone press *9, and the meeting host will
prompt you to unmute when it is your turn to speak. Or you may email the information to
bvclerk@buenavistaco.gov. Neither Town Board nor Town staff should be expected to respond to matters raised in
the Public Comment segment of Board meetings. Nevertheless, Board members will always retain the right to ask
This Agenda may be Amended
Posted at Buena Vista Town Hall, Post Office, and www.buenavistaco.gov on Friday, July 9, 2021
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questions of the speaker and respond then or later to remarks made by any citizen.
VII.

BUSINESS ITEMS
A. Public Hearing – The Slammer – Issuance of a Beer & Wine Liquor License
Description
(Estimated time - xx minutes)
B. Public Hearing – Ascend Cannabis – Retail Marijuana License
Description
(Estimated time - xx minutes)
C. Chaffee County Recreation Plan
Adoption of Resolution No. xx. Series 2021 entitled, “A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD
OF TRUSTEES FOR THE TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO APPROVING AN…….
Envision Chaffee County Co-Chair Cindy Williams and Jim Pitts with the U.S. Forst Service
will meet with the Board to discuss the Chaffee County Recreation Plan.
(Estimated time – xx minutes)
D. Airport Business Plan Update – Jack
Description
(Estimated time – xx minutes)
E. Amend 2021 Budget Adjustment
Adoption of Resolution No. xx. Series 2021 entitled, “A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FOR THE TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO APPROVING adjustments to the 2021 budget
Description
(Estimated time – xx minutes)
F.

Agreement with Colorado Department of Transportation for Main Street Lighting
Description
(Estimated time – xx minutes)

G. Adoption of Resolution No. xx, Series 2021 entitled, “A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF
TRUSTEES FOR THE TOWN OF BUENA VISTA, COLORADO, APPROVING AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE FUNDING OF THE CHAFFEE COUNTY
MULTIJURISDICTIONAL HOUSING AUTHORITY.”?
Description
(Estimated time – xx minutes)
VIII.

STAFF REPORTS
1. Town Administrator
2. Town Treasurer
3. Police Chief
4. Interim Fire Chief
5. Recreation Director

IX. TRUSTEE/STAFF INTERACTION
The Board discusses items with staff and staff can bring up matters not on the agenda.
X. EXECUTIVE SESSION
A. An executive session to determine positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations,
develop a strategy for negotiations, and/or instruct negotiations, pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e),
Triview…..
B.

An executive session to determine positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations,
develop a strategy for negotiations, and/or instruct negotiations, pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e),
Colorado Parks & Wildlife….
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XI. ADJOURNMENT
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